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Company History

Hoechst Pakistan Limited (formerly Sanofi-Aventis Pakistan Limited) has been present in
Pakistan for over 55 years, saving the lives of millions and improving the quality of life of
many more through high quality products.

The Company was incorporated on December 8, 1967, as Hoechst Pakistan Limited. In
1977 the organization went public and was listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange (now
Pakistan Stock Exchange). Following multiple mergers, divestments and acquisitions over
the years, the name of the company was changed to sanofi-aventis Pakistan limited in
2005.

On May 6th, 2022, Sanofi publicly announced the signing of a binding Share Purchase
Agreement with the investor consortium led by Packages Limited, and including IGl
Investments, and affiliates of Arshad Ali Gohar Group. The transaction successfully closed
at the end of April 2023 with the transfer of 52.87% shares to the consortium. In August
2023, the Board of Directors approved the change of the name of the Company from
“sanofi-aventis Pakistan Limited” to “Hoechst Pakistan Limited”.

We are a company with a rich legacy of excellence and reliability, and we are now seeking
new ways to innovate and improve upon our past successes to address the full spectrum of
healthcare needs, from wellness to prevention to management, treatment and cure.

1970 — Foundation Laying Ceremony of Hoechst Pakistan (now Hoechst Pakistan Limited)

L to R : Front : Uwe Weimann , Pir Ali Gohar, Syed Babar Ali,
Prof. Sammet (Chairman, Hoechst A.G.) , Dominik von Winterfeldt , Karl — Heinz Gross;

Back: Dr. Seyfried and Dr. Ing. Siegfried Lenz
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H iStO I"i Cal M i |eStO nes Sanofi’s shareholding was

purchased by an investor
consortium led by Packages
Limited. The legal name
changed to Hoechst
Pakistan Limited

Sanofi-Aventis

changed its identity
to Sanofi

internationally

Name of Company
changed to Sanofi-Aventis
Pakistan Limited

Name of the Company

in Paklste!n changed Aventis S.A. acquired by sanofi
to A\{entls P.harma synthelabo to form a company
(Pakistan) Limited

called sanofi-aventis S.A

Aventis Pharma (Pakistan)
Limited merged with Rhone
Poulenc Rorer Pakistan
(Private) Limited and name
Hoechst Pakistan Limited changed to Aventis Limited
changed its name to Hoechst
Marion Roussel (Pakistan)
Limited

Hoechst AG & Rhone
Poulenc S.A. globally
merged their life
sciences business into a
new company known as
Aventis S.A

The Company was
incorporated with the
name of Hoechst
Pakistan Limited

The Company got listed on
Karachi Stock Exchange



Fairness and
We stand up for consideration are
what we believe in. integral to our
culture.

We treat people
with respect and
dignity.

Truthfulness,
integrity and trust
form the backbone
of all our activities.

We aspire to lead
in everything that
we do.




Board of Directors

m Date of Joining Board Other Engagements

Prior to the listing of the Ali Institute of Education
company in 1977 Babar Ali Foundation
Gurmani Foundation
IGI Holdings Limited
Industrial Technical & Educational Institute
Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS)
National Management Foundation

Nestle Pakistan Limited

Syed Maratib Ali Religious & Charitable Trust Society
Tetra Pak Pakistan Limited

The American Academy of Arts & Sciences

Tri-Pack Films Limited

Syed Babar Al
(Chairman)

February 22, 1987 Ali Institute of Education
Babar Ali Foundation
Bulleh Shah Packaging (Private) Limited
Flexible Packages Convertors (Pty) Limited
IGI General Insurance Limited
IGI Investments (Private) Limited
IGI Life Insurance Limited
IGI Holdings Limited
International Chamber of Commerce, Pakistan
Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS)
National Management Foundation
Nestle Pakistan Limited
Syed Hyder Ali Packages Convertors Limited
(Non-Executive Director) Packages Limited
Packages Real Estate (Private) Limited
Packages Lanka (Private) Limited
Pakistan Business Councial
Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy
Packages Trading FZCO
Packages Foundation
Syed Maratib Ali Religious & Charitable Trust Society
Tri-Pack Films Limited
World Wide Fund for Nature — Member Advisory Council

21 4 L I
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February 11, 2011 Ali Gohar & Company (Private) Limited
AGT Holdings (Private) Limited
AGC (Private) Limited
Nera Pharma (SMC-Private) Limited

Arshad Ali Gohar
(Non-Executive Director)

*Other engagements have been listed in alphabetical order.
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m Date of Joining Board Other Engagements m Date of Joining Board Other Engagements

Pakistan Petroleum Limited Coronet Foods Limited

The Kidney Centre Post Graduate Training Institute English Biscuit Manufacturers (Private) Limited
Employers’ Federation of Pakistan
Education Fund for Sindh

National Foods Limited
Shield Corporation Limited

Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala
(Independent Director)

Saadia Naveed
(Independent Director)

No other engagements No other engagements

Syed Anis Ahmad Shah
(Independent Director)

Igra Sajjad
(Non-Executive Director)

Agri Auto Industries Limited

Education Fund For Sindh

Habib Metro Pakistan (Private) Limited
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Co. Limited
Thal Nova Power Thar (Private) Limited
Thal Electric (Private) Limited

Thar Power Company Limited

Thal Limited

Babar Ali Foundation - Honorary Secretary
IGI Investments (Private) Limited
StarchPack (Private) Limited

Muhammad Salman Burney
(Non-Executive Director)

Sajjad Iftikhar
(Chief Executive Officer)

*Other engagements have been listed in alphabetical order. *Other engagements have been listed in alphabetical order.

10 | HOECHST PAKISTAN LIMITED (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited) ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 11



%Il
13t

in the industry*

*source: IQVIA PKPI MAT Dec 2024
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The Year at a Glance
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Production Volumes
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Total*
employees
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Net Sales
PKR 26,148

Million

(after tax)
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Field Force

million
Oral
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Females are
in leadership
positions

(Earnings per share)
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per share

Our Key Brands
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Employee Engagement

i
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Employees marked successful transmon of the former gIobaIIy supported SAP to HPL's own SAP Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) system. The change will significantly reduce costs, enhance efficiency, optimize
processes, and better serve our stakeholders

During World Quality Week, employees reflected on the critical role quality plays in our daily work. The week
celebrated HPL’'s commitment to excellence and reinforced the notion that the pursuit of quality is not just a goal,

but a continuous journey

f\\
Ny

Special arrangements were made to mark rellglous festlvals Employees wrote personalized thank-ounotes
for the minority groups, promoting the culture of inclusivity and to express gratitude and appreciation for fellow
diversity in the organization coworkers on World Gratitude Day

14 | HOECHST PAKISTAN LIMITED (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited)

KYC (Know Your Company) is a biannual employee orientation program to promote familiarization of new hires
with the organization, Company culture and values

First batch of Management Trainees was hired in 2024 following comprehensive assessment programs held
across key educational institutions

Lucky draw winners of Haj Balloting with HPL
Management & President of Employees’ Union

Successful completion of the Mega 950KW Solar
Panel Project was celebrated by all employees

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 15



Independence Day Celebrations 2024 filled the air with patriotic zeal and enthusiasm. Employees from all
cadres came together to mark August 14th
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Annual Milad-un-Nabi (PBUH) ceremony was arranged by HPL working day after Eid Holidays at the grand annual Employee Appreciation Day was held across the Company to recognize the contribution of our employees

Recreation Club in commemoration of 12th Rabi-ul-Awwal B e broakiadh including the janitorial and security staff

16 | HOECHST PAKISTAN LIMITED (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited) ANNUAL REPORT 2024 |17
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Initial Sales Training Program (ISTP) is a comprehensive 6-day training program designed to equip freshly recruited

Medical Representatives with the essential knowledge and skills required to excel in their roles. The ISTP initiative is

aligned with our overarching vision to empower our sales team and prepare them to surpass competition and meet
the highest standards of performance

Fire drills were frequently arranged for employees as drills play a crucial role in ensuring employee safety and
enhancing their understanding of the evacuation procedure in the event of a real fire emergency
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An employee wellbeing initiative - “Get Fit” - was launched to promote healthy lifestyle amongst employees
under the guidance of fitness trainers

18 | HOECHST PAKISTAN LIMITED (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited)

Hosthet
CONMEC
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TRADERS

A ACEUTICAL DIBTRIBUTORS

HPL Connect 2024 was held in Karachi and Lahore in Dec’24 to celebrate a successful year and achievements
of top performers across the Company. Acknowledgement shields and souvenirs were also presented to the
distributors for their tireless efforts in ensuring uninterrupted supply of our medicines across Pakistan

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 [ 19



Initiatives on Diversity & Inclusion

HR Leadership Forum on Disability Inclusion International Men’s Day
Hoechst Pakistan Limited and ConnectHear International Men’s Day is observed on November 19 to
jointly hosted HR Leadership Forum in Nov’24 on appreciate male role models in our daily life and celebrate
Disability Inclusion, welcoming HR leaders and men’s contributions to society.
representatives from various companies across
multiple industries. HPL invited Mr. Adeel Azhar (famous broadcaster, podcast host

& training enthusiast) as a guest speaker for an immersive 3-hour
workshop on “Finding Happiness in Life”, for the male employees
of HPL, Tri-Pack Films Limited, IGI General Insurance Limited,
IGI Life Insurance Limited & Packages Convertors Limited.

ConnectHear is an accessibility service provider
dedicated to empowering Persons with Disabilities
through inclusive technologies, communication
solutions, sign language services, and accessibility

resources. The event provided male colleagues an excellent opportunity

to reflect on the importance of prioritizing mental wellbeing and
celebrating small achievements and joyful moments of daily life.

The objective of rallying support for the disabled workforce througH this platform Warsi to inspire organizations
to learn from peers and demonstrate best practices that would help influence businesses to create goals and

tangible outcomes on disability inclusion.

International Women’s Day

Embracing Womanhood

International We are committed to fostering a workplace where everyone realizes their full potential. Through our
Women's Day collaboration with Vending Central and Rose Petals Production, we introduced “her Machine” to provide our
female staff easy access to essential feminine care products placed in the dedicated ladies’ common room.

This initiative reinforces our commitment to supporting women'’s health and well-being, providing a comfortable,
inclusive, and empowering work environment.

Females from across the Packages Group
companies came together to mark the
International Women’s Day on March 8.

20 | HOECHST PAKISTAN LIMITED (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited) ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 21



Women’s Career Development Workshop

An exclusive workshop on Women’s Career Development was organized, focusing on how to “stand out as
Majority while being in Minority”.

In the 2-hour workshop, trainer Mr. Shakeel Mapara covered three important areas: Self-Assessment &
Awareness, Building Self Confidence, and Encountering Challenges through real life examples.

International Youth Day was marked on August 12
to celebrate the contribution, initiatives and actions
of young people.

At HPL, we believe in empowering the youth and
benefiting from their skills, talent and optimism
while also contributing to their development.

In 2024, the number of new joiners at HPL under the
age of 30 and 25 was 88 and 41, respectively. Our
Management / Functional Trainee and Internship
programs are noteworthy examples of our trust and
investment in the young generation.

In 2024, HPL hired over 15 MTOs/FTOs and 34
interns across various departments.

She Means Business is a series of open forums
where women in leadership roles inspire the
female workforce of HPL with their success stories
and share helpful guidance and motivational
tips on navigating personal and professional
responsibilities without sacrificing professional
dreams and family priorities.

22 | HOECHST PAKISTAN LIMITED (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited)

External Engagements & Collaborations

Packages Group / HPL leadership met with the executive committee members of Sanofi in Paris
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A customized media training at IBA-CEJ (Centre for
Excellence in Journalism) engaged the Leadership
team of HPL

Institygge of Business i@

HPL participated in the annual HR Conference &
Exhibition (CONNEX’24) hosted by PSTD

HR Head of HPL was present at the 27th loBM Convocation where HPL
awarded gold medal to the student scoring the highest GPA

HPL participated in the career fairs held by various reputable universities.
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& Awards & Certifications Environment, Health & Safety

-5 ® ® ) Environmental Sustainability
| @@

_PHARMA EXPORT SUMMIT *

A + Energy Management: Reduced absolute consumption from
AWARD (PESA) e 9,580 MWh in 2023 to 8,537 MWh in 2024, while increasing

BRAND OF THE YEAR
AWARDS 2024

overall production by 18%.

Solar Generation: Increased the units from 436,648 kWh in
2023 to 1,324,843 kWh in 2024.

Water Management: Decreased absolute consumption from
158,254 ms in 2023 to 158,254 ms in 2024 which is 10.3% and
the consumption rate by 26.2% (m3/Ton of Production).
Greenhouse Gases (GHG) Management: Site carbon emissions were reduced from 8,966 tCO2e in 2023 to
8,357 tCO2e in 2024, lowering absolute emissions by 7%. Emissions intensity was reduced by 21%, from 0.73
tCO2e Ton of Carbon Emission per Ton of Production (tCO2e/Tons) in 2023 to 0.58 (tCO2e/Tons) in 2024.

Health Awareness Programs

Diabetes Awareness
Multiple activities were held in 2024 on creating diabetes awareness across Pakistan. HPL joined hands with

HPL was the proud recipient of the Pharma "Selsun Blue " was awarded the "Fastest Grow- leadin ; : ; . :
. . i . g hospitals and esteemed healthcare professionals to create impact and maximize the reach of its awareness
Export Award for the second consecutive year at ing Brand of the Year Awards 2023 and 2024" in . campaigns not just around the World Diabetes Day on November 14 but throughout the year.

the 7th Pakistan Export Summit and Awards the "Anti-Dandruff Shampoo” category.
(PESA 2024) ceremony held in Islamabad on
September 25, 2024.

SUSTAINABILITY EHS PERFORMANCE
CHAMPION AWARD EXCELLENCE AWARD

o9 P
®’e o .Hoeghst Pakistan won the Corporate Sustain- HPL won the EHS Performance Excellence
0y abjlity Champion Award 2024 at the Annual Award at the Annual EHS (Environment, Health,
by’ @ Sustainability €onference hosted by the Pack- and Safety) Conference for completing 15.2 °

e ages Group for all the Group companies. million safe manhours by December 2024. The Our activities mainly focused on patient awareness, sugar screening and diabetes awareness walks.
° Site is LTI (Lost Time Incidents) free since 2013. .Q y b » SU9 ¢
()

- - Over Estimated
ificati 100,000 18 o
Certifications _ N4 1,200 5 U I invested
- awareness beneficiaries cities
HPL achieved certification in ISO Integrated Management Systems! The process involved rigorous audit, extensive documentation, and a sessions engaged covered 200
comprehensive review of our processes. Our commitment to the highest standards in Quality Management (ISO 9001), Environmental
Management (ISO 14001), Occupational Health and Safety (ISO 45001), GHG emissions (ISO 14064-1) and Energy Management Systems conducted Hours

(ISO 50001) were thoroughly evaluated and validated by an independent certification body.

[
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Breast Cancer Awareness

In observance of October’s Breast Cancer
Awareness Month, HPL hosted an awareness
and screening session on Breast Cancer for its
female staff.

Led by Dr. Sadia Rizvi (Consultant Oncologist
at Kiran Hospital), the session underscored
the importance of self-examination and early
detection of breast cancer.

Female employees across all cadres of

management and non-management were
offered free mammography at the Kiran Hospital.

World Immunization Week

HPL arranged a series of internal and external

World Immunization Week.

Hepatitis Screening Camp

Cervical Cancer

An awareness program on Cervical Cancer engaged
the female workforce of HPL, Packages, Tripak, IGl and
Bulleshah.

Dr. Samina Saleem Dhojki (Consultant Obstetrician and
Laparoscopic Gynecologist) talked about cervical cancer,
its causes, symptoms, and prevention.

Also known as cervix cancer, cervical cancer is a prevalent
yet preventable condition, affecting females globally.

According to the World Health Organization (WHO), an
estimated 354 million people worldwide live with hepatitis
B or C which can lead to chronic disease in the affected
individuals and together are the most common cause of liver
cirrhosis, liver cancer and viral hepatitis-related deaths.

In observance of World Hepatitis Day 2024, Hoechst
Pakistan Limited, in partnership with Transparent Hands,
organized a free screening camp for all permanent and
unionized employees.

26 | HOECHST PAKISTAN LIMITED (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited)
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Independent Auditors’ Review Report
on Statement of Compliance

L
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report

A'F'FFERGUSON&CO,

To the members of Hoechst Pakistan Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Hoechst Pakistan Limited
(the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements
of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sulfficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required
to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained
in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024.

L

A.F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: March 18, 2025

UDIN: CR202410069sEWIZH1nU

A.F.FERGUSON &CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.1. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www pwc.com/pk>

= KARACHI = LAHORE =ISLAMABAD
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Statement of Compliance
with the Listed Companies (Code Of Corporate

Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

Hoechst Pakistan Limited (formerly Sanofi-Aventis Pakistan
Limited) (the Company) has complied with requirements
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) in the following manner:

1.

The total number of directors are nine (9) as per the
following:

a. Male: Seven (7)
b. Female: Two (2)
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
Category No. Names
Independent Directors (Male) 2 | Mr. Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala
Syed Anis Ahmad Shah
Independent Director (Female) 1 | Ms. Saadia Naveed

Non-Executive Directors (Male) 4 | Syed Babar Ali

Syed Hyder Ali
Mr. Arshad Ali Gohar
Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney

Non-Executive Director (Female) | 1 | Ms. lgra Sajjad
Executive Director (CEO) 1| Mr. Sajiad Iftikhar
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them

is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including the Company;

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and
has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with
its supporting policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement,
overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured that complete
record of particulars of the significant policies along
with their date of approval or updating is maintained
by the Company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised
and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by the Board / Shareholders as empowered by the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the
Act) and the Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the
Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose The Board has complied
with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating
minutes of meeting of the Board;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent
procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and the Regulations;

©

At present, out of nine (9) Directors on the Board, five
(5) Directors (including the CEQO) have acquired the
Directors’ Training Program Certifications whilst the
four (4) Directors are exempt from the requirement of
Directors’ Training Program;

The Board had approved the appointment of Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations in prior
years. There has been no change in this respect
during the year.

. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly

endorsed the financial statements before approval of
the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of
members given below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Name of the Member Category
Mr. Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala

(Independent Director) Chairman
Syed Anis Ahmad Shah

(Independent Director) Member
Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney

(Non-executive Director) Member
Ms. Saadia Naveed

(Independent Director) Member

HUMAN RESOURCE (HR) AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Name of the Member

Category

Ms. Saadia Naveed
(Independent Director)

Chairperson

Syed Hyder Ali

(Non-executive Director) Member

Mr. Arshad Ali Gohar

(Non-executive Director) Member

Mr. Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala

(Independent Director) Member

Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney

(Non-executive Director) Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees

have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance;
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14.

15.

16.

17.

The frequency of meetings of the committees during
the year were as per following:

Audit Committee Quarterly

HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly

The Board has set up an effective internal audit
function by outsourcing the same to KPMG Taseer
Hadi & Co, who are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with
the policies and procedures of the Company;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed
that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan,
that they and all their partners are in compliance
with the International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that
they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit
are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit,
Company Secretary or any Director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated
with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, the
Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and,
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18.

19.

We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations
3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with; and

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements,
other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 is
stated below.

Nomination Committee and Risk Management
Committee (Regulations 29 and 30)

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
and the Risk Management Committee are currently
fulfilled by the Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee, respectively.
Therefore, establishing a separate committee for
Nomination and Risk Management is not considered
necessary.

Sustainability Committee (Regulation 10A)

There is a Group Sustainability Committee in place
which has been entrusted to monitor and review
sustainability related risks and opportunities of the
Group companies, ensure Diversity, Equity, and
Inclusion (DE&I) practices, oversee compliance of
relevant laws pertaining to relevant sustainability
related considerations and its appropriate disclosures.
The Committee’s Terms of Reference cover the
operations of the Group and it advises the Group
companies on embedding sustainability principles into
their respective strategies and operations to increase
corporate value.

By order of the Board

fota st

e

Syed Babar Ali
Chairman

Karachi
Date: February 20, 2025

Sajjad Iftikhar
Chief Executive Officer
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Operating & Financial Highlights

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio

Quick Ratio

Cash to Current Liabilities
Cash Flow from Operations to Sales
Net Working Capital

Net Assets

Operating Cycle

Current assets to Total assets
Inventory / Current Assets
Inventory to Total Assets

Activity Ratios

Inventory Turnover

Average No of Days inventory in stock
Accounts Receivable Turnover
Average Collection Period

Creditors Turnover

Average Payment Period

Fixed Assets Turnover

Operating Assets Turnover

Total Assets Turnover

Leverage
Interest Coverage Ratio
Fixed Assets to Equity

Profitability Ratios

Sales Growth

COGS to Net Sales

EBITDA* to Net Sales

Profit Before Tax to Net Sales
Net Profit Margin

Gross Profit Margin

Operating Profit Margin

Return on Assets

Return on Equity

Return on Capital Employed
Admin.Dist.&Mktg. Exp. to Net Sales
Admin.Dist.&Mktg. Exp. Variance
Financial Charges to Net Income

Market Value

Market Value Per Share
Breakup value per Share
Market / Book Ratio

Earnings per share (before tax & levies)

Earnings per share (after tax & levies)
Price Earning Ratio

Dividend per Share

Dividend Yield

Dividend cover

Payout Ratio

Market Capitalisation

Times
Times
Times
%
Rs. M
Rs. M
Days
%
%
%

Times
Days
Times
Days
Times
Days
Times
Times
Times

Times
Times

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
(YO
%
%
%
%
CVO

Rs.
Rs.
Times
Rs.
Rs.
Times
Rs.
%
Times
%
Rs.M

1.7
0.5
0.02
2.1
4,438
6,815
128
80.9
71.0
57.5

3.1
118
38.8

3.9
94
13.4
2.7
23

25.1
0.3

25.2
68.5
14.7
13.0

6.9
31.5
13.5
15.9
30.2
58.0
16.5
27.2

7.8

2,800.00
706.6
4.0
360.8
192.6
14.5
135.0
438

1.4
70.1
27,005

*EBITDA = Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization

1.8
0.8
0.03
15.9
3,417
5,471
112
79.2
52.4
41.5

3.7
100
29.9

33
12
11.4
24
1.9

6.2
0.3

15.1
741
6.6
43
1.7
25.9
5.1
33
6.9
20.7
16.2
29
48.4

1,200.00
567.3
2.1
95.0
37.4
32.1
30.0
25
1.2
80.2
11,574

14
08
(0.19)
(0.9)
2,985
5,030
126
83.1
444
369

3.2
13
28.3
13
3.0
122
10.3
2.2
1.7

15.5
0.4

16.9
73.8
5.7
3.9
0.9
26.2
42
1.5
3.3
15.0
18.1
36.7
29.9

958.00
521.5
1.8
75.1
17.3
55.4

9,240

1.8
0.8
0.20
13.2
3,323
5,219
122
79.0
53.5
42.3

3.3
1
32.0

33
11
9.2
24
1.8

51.5
0.3

126
740
11.3
9.0
5.7
26.0
9.2
10.1
185
292
15.5
(3.5)
3.1

897.67
5411
1.7
148.9
93.9
9.6
30.0
33
3.1
31.9
8,658
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17
0.9
(0.05)
6.5
2,862
4,562
119
78.0
52.4
37.1

3.6
102
22.9
16
3.2
13
8.2
22
1.7

16.1
0.4

2.7)
730
9.2
6.2
35
27.0
6.6
6.0
11.4
212
18.1
(10.4)
118

757.34
473.0
1.6
91.2
51.1
14.8
20.0
2.6
2.6
39.1
7,304

16
0.9
(0.12)
35
2,307
4,089
108
768
51.7
33.1

4.0
92
22.8
16
33
11
8.7
2.6
1.9

8.5
0.4

1.9
74.3
6.7
3.8
1.1
25.7
43
20
3.7
14.8
19.6
10.0
46.7

800.10
424.0
1.9
56.7
16.1
49.8
8.0
1.0
2.0
49.8
7,717



Horizontal Analysis

mﬂmmﬂ-m mmmmm
Rs in million Rs in million Rs in million Rs in million Rs in million Rs in million
Operating Results
Net sales 26,748 25.2 21,369 15.1 18,560 16.9 15,881 12.6 14,108 (2.7) 14,501 11.9
Cost of sales (18,320) 15.6 (15,843) 15.7 (13,689) 16.4 (11,758) 141 (10,303) (4.4) (10,776) 19.5
Gross profit 8,428 52.5 5,526 13.5 4,871 18.1 4,123 8.4 3,805 2.1 3,725 (5.6)
Distribution,selling and administrative expenses (4,403) 27.2 (8,461) 2.9 (3,365) 37.7 (2,444) (4.2) (2,551) (10.4) (2,848) 10.0
Other expenses (incuding allowance for ECL) (635) (53.4) (1,361) 49.2 (912) 137.6 (384) 5.3 (365) 4.2 (350) (24.4)
Other income 234 (39.4) 387 114.9 180 5.6 170 242.7 50 (46.3) 92 100.7
Operating profit 3,624 232.2 1,091 41.0 774 (47.2) 1,465 56.1 938 51.5 619 (34.2)
Finance costs (145) (17.3) (175) 250.8 (50) 75.2 (29) (51.7) (58) (19.4) (72) 389.2
Profit before tax & levies 3,479 279.8 916 26.5 724 (49.6) 1,436 63.2 880 61.0 546 (41.0)
Tax & levies (1,622) 192.2 (555) (0.4) (557) 5.0 (530) 36.7 (387) (1.2) (892) 25.1
Net profit 1,857 414.7 361 116.3 167 (81.6) 906 83.7 493 218.5 155 (74.7)
Balance Sheet
Fixed assets 2,181 19.7 1,822 (5.1) 1,920 13.4 1,693 (4.2) 1,767 6.5 1,658 (0.3
Other non-current assets 405 74.6 232 38.9 167 (34.4) 255 82.1 140 10.2 127 116.0
Current assets 10,970 40.4 7,816 (23.7) 10,245 39.8 7,326 8.6 6,746 141 5,911 (2.8)
Total assets 13,557 37.3 9,870 (20.0) 12,332 33.0 9,274 7.2 8,653 12.4 7,695 (1.4)
Ordinary share capital 96 - 96 - 96 - 96 - 96 - 96
Reserves 6,718 25.0 5,375 9.0 4,934 (3.7) 5,122 14.7 4,466 11.8 3,993 (5.0)
Non-current liabilities 209 100 - (100.0) 42 (21.1) 53 (74.4) 207 10,250 2
Current liabilities 6,532 48.5 4,399 (39.4) 7,260 81.4 4,003 3.1 3,884 7.7 3,605 2.8
Total equity and liabilities 13,557 37.3 9,870 (20.0) 12,332 33.0 9,274 7.2 8,653 12.4 7,696 (1.4)
Cash Flows
Cash generated from operations 566 (83.3) 3,395 (17,502.5) (20) (100.9) 2,096 129.0 916 81.8 504 (74.3)
Cash flows used in operating activities (1,400) 59.3 (879) (29.7) (1,251) 112.6 (588) 13.7 (517) (3.3) (535) (25.1)
Cash flows generated from / (used in) investing activities 177 (117.8) (998) 129.5 (435) 85.1 (235) (40.5) (395) 12.5 (351) 14.5
Cash flows generated from / (used in) financing activities 659  (1,703.0) (41) (90.8) (448) 42.4 (315) (234.7) 234 (180.7) (289) (32.9)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 (99.8) 1,476 (168.5) (2,153) (324.7) 958 304.1 237 135.3 (671) (231.6)
Number of Employees
Number of permanent employees at year end 807 717 744 819 793 908
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Vertical Analysis

2024 | 2023 mmﬂ—mﬂ--m_

Rs in million % Rs in million % Rs in million % Rs in million % Rs in million Rs in million %
Operating Results
Net sales 26,748 100.0 21,369 100.0 18,560 100.0 15,881 100.0 14,108 100.0 14,501 100.0
Cost of sales (18,320) (68.5) (15,843) (74.1) (13,689) (73.8) (11,758) (74.0) (10,303) (73.0) (10,776) (74.3)
Gross profit 8,428 31.5 5,526 25.9 4,871 26.2 4,123 26.0 3,805 27.0 3,725 25.7
Distribution,selling and administrative expenses (4,403) (16.5) (3,461) (16.2) (3,365) (18.1) (2,444) (15.4) (2,551) (18.1) (2,848) (19.6)
Other expenses (incuding allowance for ECL) (635) (2.4) (1,361) (6.4) (912) (4.9) (384) (2.4) (365) (2.6) (350) (2.4)
Other income 234 0.9 387 1.8 180 1.0 170 1.1 50 0.4 92 0.6
Operating profit 3,624 13.5 1,091 5.1 774 4.2 1,465 9.3 938 6.6 619 4.3
Finance costs (145) (0.5) (175) (0.8) (50) (0.3 (29) (0.2) (58) (0.4) (72) (0.5)
Profit before tax & levies 3,479 13.00 916 4.30 724 3.90 1,436 9.10 880 6.2 546 3.80
Tax & levies (1,622) (6.10) (555) (2.60) (557) (3.00) (530) (3.3) (387) (2.7) (392) (2.7)
Net profit 1,857 6.90 361 1.69 167 0.90 906 5.7 493 3.5 155 1.1
Balance Sheet
Fixed assets 2,181 16.1 1,822 18.4 1,920 15.6 1,693 18.3 1,767 20.4 1,658 21.6
Other non-current assets 405 3.0 232 24 167 1.4 255 2.7 140 1.6 127 1.6
Current assets 10,970 80.9 7,816 79.2 10,245 83.0 7,326 79.0 6,746 78.0 5,911 76.8
Total assets 13,557 100.0 9,870 100.0 12,332 100.0 9,274 100.0 8,653 100.0 7,696 100.0
Ordinary share capital 96 0.7 96 1.0 96 0.8 96 1.0 96 1.1 96 1.3
Reserves 6,718 49.6 5,375 54.4 4,934 40.0 5,122 55.2 4,466 51.6 3,993 51.9
Non-current liabilities 209 1.5 - - 42 0.3 53 0.6 207 24 2
Current liabilities 6,532 48.2 4,399 446 7,260 58.9 4,003 43.2 3,884 449 3,605 46.8
Total equity and liabilities 13,557 100.0 9,870 100.0 12,332 100.0 9,274 100.0 8,653 100.0 7,696 100.0
Cash Flows
Cash generated from operations 566  23,371.2 3,395 230.0 (20) 0.9 2,096 218.7 916 386.1 504 (75.0)
Cash flows used in operating activities (1,400) (57,793.9) (879) (59.6) (1,251) 58.1 (588) (61.4) (517) (218.1) (535) 79.6
Cash flows generated from / (used in) investing activities 177 7,316.9 (998) (67.6) (435) 20.2 (235) (24.5) (395) (166.4) (351) 52.3
Cash flows generated from / (used in) financing activities 659  27,205.7 (41) (2.8) (448) 20.8 (315) (32.8) 234 98.5 (289) 431
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 100.0 1,476 100.0 (2,153) 100.0 958 100.0 237 100.0 (671) 100.0
Number of Employees
Number of permanent employees at year end 807 717 744 819 793 908
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Analytical Review

Cost of Sales

Gross Margin D&M / Net Sales Ratio 2023 2024
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Net Sales Gross Profit Current Assets & Current Liabilities Current Ratio
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Statement of Value Added
o024 | 2028 |

Rs in thousand % Rs in thousand %
Net Sales including sales tax 27,047,468 100.0 21,618,635 100.0
Materials and services (17,642,344) (65.2) (15,574,332) (72.0)
9,405,124 34.8 6,044,303 28.0
Distributed as follows:
Employees
Staff Cost 3,248,197 34.5 2,574,369 42.6
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 187,415 2.0 48,911 0.8
3,435,612 36.5 2,623,280 434
Govrnment
Income tax 1,241,342 13.2 755,044 12.5
Custom Duty, sales tax and others 2,384,571 25.4 1,880,986 31.1
Central Research Fund 37,842 0.4 9,866 0.2
Workers’ Welfare Fund 79,487 0.8 22,235 0.4
3,743,242 39.8 2,668,131 441
Capital Providers
Dividend to shareholders 1,302,043 13.8 289,343 4.8
Mark-up on borrowed funds 60,427 0.6 76,838 1.3
1,362,470 14.5 366,181 6.1
Retained in business
Depreciation and amortisation 308,696 3.3 315,247 5.2
Net Earnings 555,104 59 71,464 1.2
863,800 9.2 386,711 6.4
9,405,124 100 6,044,303 100

O Employees O Government O Employees O Government

Capital Providers  © Retained in business Capital Providers  © Retained in business
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Chairman’s
Review Report
a7

It is my pleasure to present Chairman’s Review Report for the year 2024. At Hoechst, we continue to live by our
core values of honesty, care, lead, respect and courage and aim at improving the lives of people.

The Company has achieved a topline growth of 25% that demonstrates the resilience and commitment of the
employees. The cost optimization and efficiency measures taken by management as well as the price increases
allowed by the Regulator has provided much needed financial sustainability to the Company.

Your Company, through its commitment for the benefit of people, has taken initiatives with the supply chain partners
to ensure the availability of products, in order to protect and support people facing health challenges.

Review of Financial Performance

The Company has achieved net sales of Rs. 26,748 million in 2024 with sales growth of 25% over last year with
gross profit margin of 32% through efficient sourcing and operational efficiencies. The Company achieved net profit
after tax of Rs. 1,857 million in the year 2024 as compared to Rs. 361 million last year through tighter control over
operating costs, stable exchange rate parity and efficient working capital & treasury management.

Board’s Function and Decision Making

The function of the Board as representatives of the shareholders is governance and oversight. During this year,
the Board, under my leadership, worked closely with the management in ensuring that all the legal and regulatory
requirements have been complied with, realigning strategies to deal with ongoing challenges and provided
necessary direction for the attainment of strategic goals.

Board’s Annual Performance Evaluation

During the year, the Board continued its effort to ensure adherence to the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and fortify a culture of strong commitment and compliance with the best corporate
governance and prudent pharma practices. The Board has completed its annual self-evaluation for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

The overall performance of the Board for the year was satisfactory.

Acknowledgement

I would like to thank all our shareholders, customers and bankers for their trust and support during the year. | would
also like to extend my gratitude to the Board members, CEO and all employees for their valuable support and
commitment towards your Company.

fotantr

™

Syed Babar Ali
Karachi: February 20, 2025
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Annual
Report of Hoechst Pakistan Limited (formerly Sanofi-
Aventis Pakistan Limited) (the “Company”) along with
the Company’s audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2024. The Directors’ report has been
prepared in accordance with Section 227 of the Companies
Act 2017, and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2019.

Your Company is one of the well-established healthcare
companies of Pakistan, focused on patient needs and
engaged in the manufacturing, promotion, and sale of
pharmaceutical and vaccines.

Performance Overview

The Company has achieved net sales of Rs. 26,748
million during the year 2024 representing a growth of 25%
as compared to last year that is indicative of improved
penetration of Company’s products for its patients. The
Company has improved its gross margin to 32% as
opposed to 26% last year. These product margins have
been improved through enhanced focus on operational
efficiencies, efficient material sourcing and price increases
allowed by the Regulator.

The profit after tax for the year ended December 31, 2024,
stands at Rs. 1,857 million, as compared to profit after
tax of Rs. 361 million in 2023. This has been achieved
through enhanced focus on operating cost control, stable
exchange rate parity and efficient working capital &
treasury management.

Key Financial Highlights

(Amounts in Million)

Net Sales 26,748 21,369
Gross Profit 8,428 5,526
Gross Profit % 32% 26%
Operating Profit 3,624 1,091
Operating Profit % 14% 5%
Finance Cost (145) (175)
Profit After Tax 1,857 361
Earnings Per Share (Rupees) 192.56 37.41
30,000 Net Sales
24,000
c
2 18,000
g
IS
& 12,000
6,000
07

Sales contribution split between different therapeutic areas
is as follows:

@ Antibotic @ Cardiology @ Diabetes @ Pain & Allergy @ Others

Antibiotics, Diabetes and Cardiology maintained their
momentum of being the highest contributors accounting
for 70% of the total net sales of the Company. Sales from
Antibiotics increased to Rs. 9,184 million from Rs. 7,391
million last year witnessing an increase of 24% which
was mainly due to the increase in sales of Flagyl® which
contributes 78% of Antibiotic sales.

Sales from our Diabetes portfolio reached Rs. 4,964 million
from Rs. 3,932 million last year depicting a growth of 26%.
Major contributors to the sales were Lantus®, Toujeo® and
Amaryl®.

Sales from Cardiology reached Rs. 4,483 million from Rs.
3,592 million, registering a growth of 25% mainly driven by
Clexane® and Plavix®.

Internal Audit and Controls

The Company has setup an effective internal audit and
control function, which provides independent assurance to
the Board on the existence and effectiveness of internal
controls. In compliance with the Company’s risk governance
framework, the Audit Committee approves the annual internal
audit plan to ensure effectiveness and independence of
the Internal Audit function. The Directors are confident that
the system of internal control is sound in design and was
effectively implemented and monitored throughout the year.

Risk Management

The Company faces several legal, regulatory, and
operational risks. There is an Internal Controls and Risk
Management Framework in place which ensures that
appropriate risk mitigation plans exist and are working
effectively. Any significant issues are escalated to higher
management and the Board.

Strategic risks are managed by the Board of Directors
with the assistance of leadership team while operational
risks are managed by the leadership team. Some key
areas which can impact the Company’s operations being a
pharmaceutical player include the following:

Pricing of pharmaceutical products
Currency devaluation

Counterfeit products

Disruption in supply chain

Delayed recoveries from institutions
Product liability claims
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Our People and Culture

The talent and passion of our people is our greatest
strength. Our people are committed to making the best
products and solutions accessible to patients. We believe
in promoting a culture of care, respect, honesty, courage
and lead which is aligned with the values of our Group.
We continue to create a more diverse and inclusive work
environment where our people & the Company can excel.

Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

We take a progressive approach to inclusion and diversity
because we want everyone to be themselves and
bring their own perspectives to our business. Together,
these unique perspectives and wide variety of personal
experiences make our business stronger, enhancing our
ability to innovate and respond to the diverse needs of
patients and consumers.

We do not tolerate harassment, unwelcome, unreasonable
or offensive behavior, or discrimination of any kind. We
carry out training sessions on discrimination and biasness
for all employees to educate them about discrimination and
biasness, comply with our culture and values creating a
discriminatory free workplace environment, as well as to
promote a culture of ethics and integrity.

To achieve its diversity and inclusion aspirations, the
Company has:

. Ensured that the Board’s composition considers
the right balance of skills, experience, knowledge,
perspectives and gender in alignment with the
strategic needs of the Company.

Il.  Fostered a culture that promotes and values diversity
among staff at all levels.

Ill. Integrated diversity and inclusion objectives in line
with this Policy in its strategic plan.

IV. Reviewed the gender pay gap analysis within the
Company, its retention and development of skills of
the female employees, provision of a conducive work
environment, better maternity leaves, anti-harassment
and speak up policies and forums, with a specialized
committee overseeing harassment complaints.

V. Ensured that diversity objectives are a part of Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) of Senior Management.

VI. Encouragedthefemale memberswhohold management
positions to move into senior management or executive
level positions and take up additional responsibilities
based on their performance. This will help reinforce the
Company’s culture and public image of diversity and
inclusion, thus allowing Company to retain and cultivate
their best talent at all levels.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has a long history of supporting and
partnering with communities to improve lives across the
Country. The Company recognizes that Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) initiatives create positive impact for
communities.

Details of CSR activities carried out during the year are
given in the Annual Report.

Environment, Health and Safety
The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of Environment, Health and Safety (EHS). The Company

ensures compliance with the best EHS practices, conducts
regular trainings and also focuses on identification and
mitigation of hazards and risks within and outside the
Company premises. Some of the key initiatives during the
year include implementation of solar energy, reduction
in the use of plastic by using reusable belts for securing
pallets in Warehouse, emergency evacuation drills, annual
medical screening of employees and safety trainings.

The Company achieved 15.2 million safe man hours i.e.
there was no lost time injury (LTI) sustained or reported
till 2024.

As part of Packages Group, our commitment to sustainability
is deeply ingrained in our corporate ethos and aligns
with our renewed sustainability strategy that embraces
ESG principles. The Group’s mission, “Creating a Better
Tomorrow,” embodies dedication to global collaboration,
striving to enhance our positive impact while diligently
minimizing any adverse effects.

Our Production processes are integrating energy-efficient
technologies and waste reduction initiatives to create a
more sustainable manufacturing ecosystem. To live our
commitment to sustainability, we have taken the following
initiatives as explained in EHS section of the Annual Report:

- Energy Management
- Solar Generation

- Water Management
- GHG Management

There is a Group Sustainability Committee in place which
has been entrusted to monitor and review sustainability
related risks and opportunities of the Group companies,
ensure Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DE&I) practices,
oversee compliance of relevant laws pertaining to relevant
sustainability related considerations and its appropriate
disclosures. The Committee’s Terms of Reference cover the
operations of the Group and it advises the Group companies
on embedding sustainability principles into their respective
strategies and operations to increase corporate value.

Formation of Subsidiaries

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held
on April 24, 2024 approved formation of a wholly owned
local subsidiary, which will be engaged in the business of
manufacturing and distributing wellness and nutraceutical
products subject to applicable regulatory approvals.
Accordingly, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned
subsidiary namely “H-Pack Wellness (Private) Limited”.

Further, the Board in its meeting held on December 19,
2024 has accorded its approval for incorporation of a wholly
owned foreign subsidiary in the United Arab Emirates (UAE),
subject to all applicable regulatory approvals. The subsidiary
will be primarily engaged in commercial trading with import,
export, distribution and warehousing as its ancillary activities.
Currently, the Company is in the process of completion of
relevant formalities for incorporation of this subsidiary.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

+  Thefinancial statements, prepared by the management
of the Company, present true and fair view, of its state
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.
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+  Proper books of account of the Company have been
maintained.

+  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently
applied in preparation of the financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

« International Financial Reporting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the
preparation of financial statements.

+  The system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored.

+ There are no significant doubts regarding the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

«  There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance as detailed in the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

+  Significant deviations from last year in operating
results have been explained in detail together with the
reasons thereof in the Annual Report.

*  Key operating and financial data for the last six years
is shown on pages from 31 to 39.

+  Thevalue of investments of provident and gratuity fund
based on their accounts (unaudited) as at December
31, 2024 was as follows:

Particulars Rs in ‘000’
Provident Fund 827,663
Gratuity Fund 794,200

. Outstanding duties, statutory charges, and taxes,
if any, have been duly disclosed in the financial
statements.

«  Trades in the shares of the Company carried out by
the Directors and their spouses are mentioned below:

- Mr. Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala purchased 20
shares

- Syed Anis Ahmad Shah purchased 20 shares

- Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney purchased 20
shares

- Ms. Saadia Naveed purchased 20 shares

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Executives have not traded
in the shares of the Company during the year.

Related Party Transactions

In accordance with Section 208 of the Companies Act,
2017 and the Companies (Related Party Transactions and
Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018, the
Company has:

a) established a policy of related party transactions which
has been duly approved by the Board.

b) set up conditions for transactions with related parties
to be characterized as “arm’s length transactions.”

c) circulated and disclosed to the Directors in the Board
papers minimum information required for approval of
related party transactions.

All related party transactions, during the year 2024, were
placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for
their review and approval. These transactions were duly
reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the
Board in their respective meetings. All these transactions
were on ‘arms length basis’in line with transfer pricing policy
approved by the Board. The Company also maintains a full
record of all such transactions, along with the terms and
conditions. For further details please refer note 33 to the
financial statements.

Ethics and Compliance

Compliance is an integral part of the Company’s way
of doing business, which emanates from our Code of
Ethics. The Code is communicated to employees and is
available in both English and Urdu languages. Training
on compliance and ethical principles is mandatory for all
employees, with additional specialized trainings for certain
categories of employees.

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board consists of total of 9 directors (including 2
female directors) comprising of 3 Independent, 5 Non-
Executive and 1 Executive Director.

Category No. Name
Independent Directors (Male) 2 | Mr.Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala
Syed Anis Ahmad Shah

Independent Directors (Female) 1 | Ms. Saadia Naveed
Non-Executive Directors (Male) 4 | Syed Babar Ali

Syed Hyder Ali

Mr. Arshad Ali Gohar

Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney
Non-Executive Directors (Female)| 1 | Ms. lgra Sajjad

Executive Director (CEQ) 1 | Mr. Sajjad ltikhar

During the year 2024, six meetings of the Board of Directors
were held. Attendance by each Director was as follows:

Syed Babar Ali 5

Syed Hyder Ali

Arshad Ali Gohar

Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala
Syed Anis Ahmad Shah
Muhammad Salman Burney
Saadia Naveed

Sajjad Iftikhar

Igra Sajjad

o O A O O O OO

Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not
attend the meetings.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Company pays a standard fee to Non-Executive
and Independent Directors for attending Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees. The fee, determined
by the Board, is aligned with market norms and is in no
manner at a level that could be perceived to compromise
their independence.
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In addition, the Board has also approved payment of
a fee to the Chairman and a Non-executive director in
consideration of providing guidance and advice to the
management over and above their duties. The details of
the fees paid to the Directors are detailed in note 34 of the
financial statements.

Audit Committee
The Board Audit Committee comprises of the following
members:

Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala
Chairman [Independent Director]

Syed Anis Ahmad Shah
Member [Independent Director]

Saadia Naveed
Member [Independent Director]

Muhammad Salman Burney
Member [Non-Executive Director]

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
comprises of the following members:

Saadia Naveed
Chairperson [Independent Director]

Syed Hyder Ali
Member [Non-Executive Director]

Arshad Ali Gohar
Member [Non-Executive Director]

Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala
Member [Independent Director]

Muhammad Salman Burney
Member [Non-Executive Director]

Pattern of shareholding

The pattern of shareholding along with categories of
shareholders as at December 31, 2024 as required under
section 227 of the Companies Act 2017 is presented on
page 102 of the annual report.

Auditors

The present auditor’s M/s A.F Ferguson & Co., Chartered
Accountants retire and have offered themselves for
reappointment. They have confirmed having achieved
satisfactory rating by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as well as compliance with
the Guidelines on the Code of Ethics of the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) as adopted by ICAP.

As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of
Directors has recommended their reappointment as
Auditors of the Company for the year ending December
31, 2025, at a fee to be mutually agreed.

Dividend

The Board of Directors have recommended final cash
dividend of Rs. 110/- per share for the year ended
December 31, 2024. This is in addition to an interim cash
dividend of Rs. 25/- per share already paid during the year.

Future Outlook

As we look to the year ahead, we will continue to build
on our competencies and review our strategies to ensure
that they remain relevant and most suited, in line with
changing dynamics in the local and global marketplace.
Your Company remains focused on delivering high-quality
products to customers, while also making concrete efforts
to improve profitability through innovation, improved
efficiency and effective cost containment initiatives to
maximize shareholders’ returns.

Acknowledgement

The Board looks forward to the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of shareholders to discuss Company’s
performance during the year 2024 and is thankful for the trust
and confidence reposed in the Board by the shareholders.
The Board would like to thank all our stakeholders for their
continued support and confidence in the Company. The
Board would like to especially appreciate the dedicated
efforts of the committed employees for their diligence and
hard work that enables us to take the Company ahead.

By the order of the Board

fotantr

™

Syed Babar Ali
Chairman

Karachi
February 20, 2025

-

Sajjad Iftikhar
Chief Executive Officer
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Gender Pay

Gap Statement
Under Circular 10 of 2024

At Hoechst Pakistan Limited, we believe in
fostering a diverse, equitable and inclusive
workplace where all employees feel valued and
empowered to succeed.

Following is the gender pay calculated for the year
ended December 31, 2024 under circular issued
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan:

Mean Gender Pay Gap: -14%

(The mean pay for women is 14% higher than that of men)
Median Gender Pay Gap: -23% ’
(The mean pay for women is 23% higher than that of men)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sajjad Iftikhar
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members

i

pwc AFFERGUSON&CO,

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of Hoechst Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Hoechst Pakistan Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

A.F.FERGUSON &CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.1. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www pwc.com/pk>

= KARACHI = LAHORE =ISLAMABAD
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

()  Revenue Recognition Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the
following:

[Refer notes 2.16, 2.24.2 (iv) and 23 to the

financial statements] i) obtained an understanding of pricing mechanism of Drug

Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP) and tested, on
sample basis, selling prices of regulated pharmaceutical

Net revenue from sale of products for the year products.

ended December 31, 2024 amounted to Rs.
26,748 million. Revenue from contracts with i)
customers is recognized at a point in time when
control of the products is transferred to the
customer i.e. on acknowledgement of receipt of
products by customers.

reviewed contracts with customers to obtain an
understanding of the terms particularly relating to timing
and transfer of control of the products and assessed
the appropriateness of revenue recognition policies and
practices followed by the Company.

As part of our overall response to the audit risks i
when identifying and assessing the risks of
material misstatement, we considered that there
is an inherent risk that revenue may be overstated
as management focuses on the achievement of
revenue targets as it is one of the key performance
indicator of the Company, which could create an
incentive for revenue to be recognized before the
control of the products has been transferred. We
have specifically focused as to whether the sales
are valid and have been recorded in the correct
accounting period.

performed substantive audit procedures including
analytical procedures and test of details over revenue
transactions along with review of related supporting
documents, including dispatch-related documents and
customer acknowledgements, on sample basis.

iv) performed sales cut-off procedures by agreeing sample of
transactions occurred on and around the year end to the
evidence of deliveries.

v) obtained an understanding of the Company’s process and
reviewed Company’s policies and practices with respect
to discounts allowed to the customers and on sample

Considering the aforementioned reasons together basis, tested discounts provided during the year.

with 25% growth in revenue during the year, we

have considered this area a key audit matter. vi) assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures in

accordance with applicable financial reporting framework.
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Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

(i) Valuation of stock-in-trade Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the

following:
[Refer notes 2.7, 2.24.2 (ii) and 9 to the financial i) obtained an understanding of policies and procedures
statements] followed by the Company with respect to valuation of
stock-in-trade and tested supporting documents for
Stock-in-trade (net of provision) amounting to Rs. purchases of stock-in-tr;ade and the production costs
7,789 million constitutes approximately 57.46% of incurred, on sample basis.
the total assets of the Company as at the reporting i) evaluated the reasonableness of the assumptions
date. used by the Company’s management to actualize the
variances in standard cost of stock-in-trade as at the
The Company records stock-in-trade using reporting date.
standard costing as a method of valuation which
is then actualized at year end. Further, the i) obtained working of variances recorded by the
net realizable value (NRV) of stock-in-trade is Company’s management and compared standard
determined keeping in view the estimated selling costs with actual costs as per the purchase invoices

on a sample basis, which were utilized to actualize

price in the ordinary course of business less the
standard cost as at year end.

estimated costs of completion and the estimated

n r make th le. . . .
costs necessary to make the sale iv) performed recalculation of net realizable value

(NRV), on a sample basis, for closing stock-in-trade

We have considered this area as a key audit by comparing the carrying values with the applicable
matter due to significant amount involved, complex selling prices.

valuation processes and estimates involved in the
determination of provision for obsolescence of v) tested provision recorded for slow moving, obsolete,
stock-in-trade and the NRV. damaged and near to expiry stock-in-trade.

vi) assessed the adequacy of related financial statements
disclosures in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
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error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(@) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Waqas Aftab Sheikh.

o

A. F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: March 18, 2025

UDIN: AR202410069hB9rjzSeR
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 I

ST 2024\ 2023 | TR 2024\ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

Statement of Financial Position
as at December 31, 2024

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS - NET 23 26,747,828 21,368,949
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,147,408 1,777,765
Intangible assets 4 2k 13,081 Cost of sales 24 (18,320,291) (15,842,506)
Investment properties 5 29,463 31,212
Long-term loans 6 5,656 4,146 GROSS PROFIT 8,427,537 5,526,443
Long-term deposits 47,596 15,983
Deferred tax asset - net 7 S 211,903 Distribution and marketing costs 24 (3,329,268) [ (2,641,347)

2,586,437 2,054,090 . ,

CURRENT ASSETS Administrative expenses 24 (1,073,736) (819,570)
Stores and spares 8 83,646 87,709 Allowance for expected credit loss 10.1 & 12.1 (115,715) (47,005)
Stock-in-trade - net 9 7,789,424 4,094,840 Other expenses 25 (51 9’21 9) (1 ,31 4’225)
Trade debts - net 10 805,073 572,014 )

Loans and advances 11 210,131 99,762 Other income 26 234,360 386,576
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 12 525,642 451,443 (4,803,578)  (4,435,571)
Other receivables 13 s 65,483 OPERATING PROFIT 3,623,959 1,090,872

Short-term investments 14 452,884 889,082

Income tax recoverable - net 913,508 1,438,566
Cash and bank balances 15 119,796 117,373 Finance costs 27 (144,517) (174,773)

10,970,298 7,816,272 PROFIT BEFORE MINIMUM TAX DIFFERENTIAL,

TOTAL ASSETS 13,556,735 9,870,362

FINAL TAX AND INCOME TAX 3,479,442 916,099
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Minimum tax differential 28 (289,597) (173,839)

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES .

Share capital 16 96,448 96,448 Final tax 29 (37,991) (11,214)
Reserves 17 6,718,495 5,374,990 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,151,854 731,046
e 5471438 Income tax 30 (1,294,707)  (370,239)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liability 19 209,475 -

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,857,147 360,807

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 20 5,196,348 4,272,677 . .

Contract liabilities 107,519 104,714 EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted (Rupees) 32 192.56 37.41
Accrued mark-up 13,922 2,034
Short-term bo_rrowmgs S 21 1,200,000 i The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Current maturity of deferred liabilities - 9,000
Current maturity of long term lease liability 19 2,001 -
Unclaimed dividend 10,050 8,216
Unpaid dividend 2,477 2,283
6,532,317 4,398,924
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13,556,735 9,870,362

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Syed Babar Ali Sajjad Iftikhar
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Yasser Pirmuhammad Syed Babar Ali Sajjad Iftikhar Yasser Pirmuhammad
Chief Financial Officer Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

Note
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods (net of tax):
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans 18.1

Deferred tax on actuarial gain on defined benefit plans

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

P
Syed Babar Ali Sajjad Iftikhar
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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(Rupees in thousand)

1,857,147 360,807
20,895 78,950
(4,075) 6,517)
16,820 72,433
1,873,967 433,240

o

Yasser Pirmuhammad
Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

Capital reserves Revenue reserves
Issued,

subscribed and
paid-up share T

Reserves

Difference

Other capital ~ of share capital ~ Share- based

ital R General Unappropriated
capital |;‘a)lr)gg:;s reserve :rrlrdaenrgset;t'l‘:mef :r' p?eysrg?‘:\ets o Pgroﬁl
amalgamation
(Rupees in thousand)
Balance as at January 01, 2023 96,448 5,935 18,000 366,704 3,535,538 1,007,067 5,029,692
Staff cost in relation to share-based payments - - 8,506 - - 8,506
Profit for the year - - - - 360,807 360,807
Other comprehensive income - - - - 72,433 72,433
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 433,240 433,240
Balance as at December 31, 2023 96,448 5,935 18,000 375210 3,535,538 1,440,307 5,471,438
Balance as at January 01, 2024 96,448 5,935 18,000 375210 3,535,538 1,440,307 5,471,438
Transfer from general reserves to
capital reserve (note 17.1) - - 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
Final dividend @ Rs. 30 per ordinary share
for the year ended December 31, 2023 - - - - (289,343) (289,343)
Interim dividend @ Rs. 25 per ordinary share
for the year ended December 31, 2024 - - - - (241,119) (241,119)
Profit for the year - - - - || 1,857,147 1,857,147
Other comprehensive income - - - - 16,820 16,820
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 1,873,967 1,873,967
Balance as at December 31, 2024 96,448 5,935 2,000,000 18,000 375210 1,535,538 2,783,812 6,814,943

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

P
Syed Babar Ali Sajjad Iftikhar
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

o

Yasser Pirmuhammad
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation
Allowance for expected credit loss 10.1 &12.1

Unrealised foreign exchange differences

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net 3.1.3
Amortisation of deferred liabilities

Expense related to share-based payments

Charge for defined benefit plans

Provision against defined contribution plan

Interest income 26
Fair value gain on remeasurement of mutual funds

Income on mutual funds 26
Income from investment properties 5.2
Finance costs 27
Minimum tax differential

Final tax

Working capital changes:

Decrease / (Increase) in current assets:
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Other receivables

Increase / (Decrease) in current liabilities:
Contract liabilities
Trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Finance cost paid
Interest income received
Minimum tax differential paid
Final tax paid
Income tax paid
Retirement benefits paid - net
Long-term loans
Long-term deposits
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure
Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 3.1.3
Short-term investments made
Sale proceeds from disposal of short-term investments
Income received on mutual funds
Income from investment properties 5.2
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid
Proceeds from short-term borrowings - net
Lease rentals paid
Repayment of principal portion of long-term financing
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 15

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Syed Babar Ali Sajjad Iftikhar
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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(Restated)

(Rupees in thousand)

3,151,854 731,046
308,696 315,247
115,715 47,005
100,035 203,507
(1,333) (6,118)
(9,000) (9,000)

- 8,506

42,171 57,431
34,124 46,808
(4,080) (80,876)
(3,708) -
(110,925) (27,390)
(82,976) (74,640)
144,517 174,773
289,597 173,839
37.991 11,214
4,012,678 1,571,352
4,063 329

(3,694.584) 455,853
(348,774) 221,924
(110,369) 120,542

(74,199) 2,064,770
(14,847) 423,165
(@,238,710) 3,286,583
2,805 (50,618)
789,512 (1,412.,607)
566,285 3,394,710
(118.820) (190,179)
4,080 80,876
(289,597) (173.839)
(37,991) 11,214)
(913.754) (569,991)
(11,140) (14,267)
(1,510) (523)
(31,613) -
(834.060) 2,515,573
(510,060) (286,730)
53,541 75,421
(25,105,732) ||  (5,084.282)
25,545,638 4,195,200
110,925 27.390
82,976 74,640
177,288 (998.361)
(528,434) (70)

1,200,000 -

(12,371) -

- (41,053)
659,195 (41,123)
2,423 1,476,089

- (257)
117,373 (1,358,459)
119,796 117,373

o

Yasser Pirmuhammad
Chief Financial Officer

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

211

21.2

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Hoechst Pakistan Limited (formerly sanofi-aventis Pakistan Limited) (the Company) was incorporated
in Pakistan in 1967 as a Public Limited Company under Companies Act, 1913 [now Companies Act,
2017 (the Act)]. The shares of the Company are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX).
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing, selling and trading of pharmaceutical and related
products. The registered office of the Company is located at Plot 23, Sector 22, Korangi Industrial
Area, Karachi. The Company is a subsidiary of Packages Limited (Parent Company), whose registered
office is located at 4th floor, the Forum, Suite No. 416 - 422, G20, Block 9, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton,
Karachi.

The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company in its meeting held on April 24, 2024 approved
formation of a wholly owned local subsidiary, which will be engaged in the business of manufacturing
and distributing wellness and nutraceutical products subject to applicable regulatory approvals.
Accordingly, the Company has incorporated ‘H-Pack Wellness (Private) Limited’ on May 21, 2024.
As of reporting date, no investment was made by the Company in the said subsidiary, however,
subsequent to year end, the Company has invested and paid the shares subscription amount of Rs.
20 million.

Further, the Board in its meeting held on December 19, 2024 has accorded its approval for
incorporation of a wholly owned foreign subsidiary in the United Arab Emirates (UAE), subject to
all applicable regulatory approvals. The subsidiary will be primarily engaged in commercial trading
with import, export, distribution and warehousing as its ancillary activities. As of reporting date, the
Company is in the process of completion of relevant formalities for incorporation of this subsidiary.

Geographical location and address of business units of the Company are as follows:

Address

Plot 23, Sector 22, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi.
Jaspal Arcade, Plot No 5, I&T Center, Sector G-8/4,
Islamabad.

New Building located at, 31/E-I, Gulberg Ill, Lahore.
71A , Small industrial state, Kohat Road, Peshawar.
No 502, 5th Floor, Plot no 74-Abdali Road, Multan.
P-833 situated at State Life Building No.02,
Faisalabad.

Business Units
- Registered address / Manufacturing facility
- Sales Office Islamabad

- Sales Office Lahore
- Sales Office Peshawar
- Sales Office Multan
- Sales Office Faisalabad

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), issued by International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under the Act and, provisions of and directives issued
under the Act. Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
mentioned in accounting policies stated herein.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 57



22

2.21

222

Change in accounting policy

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has issued ‘IAS 12 - Application Guidance
on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes’ (the Guidance), whereby unrecoupable minimum
taxes in excess of normal tax liability and tax deducted at source under final tax regime are out of
scope of IAS - 12 ‘Income Taxes’ (IAS 12) and fall under the ambit of IFRIC - 21 ‘Levies’ (IFRIC - 21)
and IAS - 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (IAS 37).

Accordingly, the Company has changed its accounting policy to recognise such taxes as ‘levies’
which were previously being recognised as ‘income tax’. This change has been accounted for
retrospectively in line with the requirements of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’ and the corresponding figures in the statement of profit or loss and statement
of cash flows have been restated. The change has no impact on profit for the year or earnings per
share of the Company.

The effects of change in accounting policy are as follows:

After
Impact of | incorporating
change in effects of

Had there
been no
change in

accounting change in
policy accounting
policy

accounting
policy

Effects on statement of profit or loss (Rupees in thousand)

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Minimum tax differential - (289,597) (289,597)
Final tax - (87,991) (37,991)
Profit before income tax 3,479,442 (327,588) 3,151,854
Income tax (1,622,295) 327,588 (1,294,707)

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Minimum tax differential - (173,839) (173,839)
Final tax - (11,214) (11,214)
Profit before income tax 916,099 (185,053) 731,046
Income tax (5655,292) 185,053 (3870,239)

The related changes have also been accounted for in the statement of cashflows. However, these
changes did not have any impact on the Company’s operating, investing and financing cashflows.

Initial application of standards, amendments, improvements or interpretations to existing standards

Standards, amendments, improvements or interpretations to approved accounting and
reporting standards that became effective during the year

There are certain amendments or improvements to existing standards which became applicable to
the Company for the financial year beginning on January 1, 2024, however, these do not have any
material impact on the Company'’s financial reporting and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these
financial statements except that during the year, the ICAP has withdrawn Technical Release 27 IAS
12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ and issued the Guidance, resulting in change in accounting policy
as disclosed in note 2.1.3. Further, in accordance with SRO 1278(1)/2024 issued by the Securities
Exchange Commission of Pakistan on August 15, 2024, the Company has included certain shariah
compliance related disclosures in these financial statements (note 31).

Standards, amendments, improvements or interpretations to approved accounting and
reporting standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

There are standards and certain amendments or improvements to approved accounting and
reporting standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company for
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the financial year beginning on January 1, 2024. These are not expected to have any material impact
on the Company’s financial reporting and, therefore, have not been presented in these financial
statements except for:

Amendment to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 “Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments”:

These amendments:

- clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and derecognition of some financial assets
and liabilities, with a new exception for some financial liabilities settled through an electronic
cash transfer system;

- clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) criterion;

- add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change cashflows
(such as some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment, social and
governance (ESG) targets); and

- make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments designated at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

An important clarification brought about in these amendments is that a payment instruction (e.g. a
cheque) that is prepared for a future payment will generally not meet the requirements for the financial
liability to be discharged and hence cannot be derecognised. The previous practice of financial
liabilities being derecognised upon issuance of cheques would, hence, need to be reconsidered.

IFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements” (IFRS 18):
A new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, with a focus on updates to

the statement of profit or loss is being introduced. The key new concepts introduced in IFRS 18
relate to:

the structure of the statement of profit or loss;

- required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance measures
that are reported outside an entity’s financial statements (that is, management-defined
performance measures); and

- enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial
statements and notes in general.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Leasehold land is depreciated over the period of the lease. Depreciation on all other assets
is charged to profit or loss applying the straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset less
residual value, if not insignificant, is depreciated over its estimated useful life using depreciation
rates as stated in note 3.1. When significant parts of assets are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Depreciation is charged from the month in which asset is available for use and on disposals up
to the month the asset is in use.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each financial year end. The effect of any adjustment to residual values,
useful lives and methods is recognised prospectively as a change of accounting estimate. In
particular, the Company considers the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in
its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual values.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 59



24

241

242

243

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The
Company accounts for impairment by reducing its carrying value to the recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent costs are not recognised as assets unless it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with these costs will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured
reliably.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred.
(ii) Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any, and consist of expenditure
incurred in respect of tangible fixed assets in the course of their construction and installation.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets (ROU assets) at the commencement date of the
lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). ROU assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. ROU assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Unless the Company is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset or the ownership of the leased asset
transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option (if any)
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
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term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income in the profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

The Company has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolio consisting of
leasehold land and buildings on leasehold land. These leases have terms of three years. All leases
include a clause for upward revision of the rental charge at agreed rates.

Investment properties

The Company’s investment properties consist of leasehold land and buildings on leasehold land.
Management determined that the investment properties consist of two classes of assets, leasehold
land and buildings on leasehold land, based on the nature, characteristics and risk of a property.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss applying the straight-line method
using depreciation rates as disclosed in note 5.1.

Investment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the derecognition
of investment property is recognised in the profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal. Gain
or loss on disposal of investment property is determined as the difference between net disposal
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset and recognized in the profit or loss in the year of disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the
fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied becomes an investment property, the
Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and
equipment upto the date of change in use.

Stores and spares

These are valued at cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis, except for the stores and
spares in transit, which are stated at invoice price plus other charges incurred thereon up to the
reporting date. Value of items are reviewed at each reporting date to record provision for any slow-
moving and obsolete items, where necessary.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. Goods
in transit are valued at cost, comprising invoice price plus other charges incurred thereon up to
the reporting date. Cost signifies standard costs adjusted by variances. Cost in relation to work-
in-process and finished goods represent direct cost of materials, direct wages and appropriate
manufacturing overheads.
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2.10.1

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Provision is recorded for
slow moving and expired stock where necessary.

Employees benefits
Defined benefit plans

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme in respect of all permanent employees
and senior management staff respectively, excluding expatriates. The scheme define the amounts
of benefit that an employee will receive on or after retirement subject to a minimum qualifying period
of service under the scheme. The scheme is managed in conformity with the provisions of the Trust
Deed. The Company is responsible to make contributions to the Gratuity Fund as prescribed under
the Trust Deed and its rules, whereas, the trustees are responsible for the day to day management
of the Gratuity Fund. The gratuity obligations are calculated annually by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The most recent valuation in this regard was carried out as
at December 31, 2024.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions and the effect of the asset ceiling are recognised directly in
equity through other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. All past service costs are recognised in
profit or loss at the earlier of when the amendments or curtailment occurs and when the Company
has recognised related retirement or termination benefits. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises service costs
comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements and net interest expense or income in the profit or loss.

Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates a recognised provident fund scheme (Provident Fund) for all permanent
employees excluding expatriates. Equal monthly contributions are made to the Provident Fund at
the rate of 10 percent of basic salary by employees and the Company.

Compensated absences

The Company accounts for the accrual in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the year
in which these are earned. Provisions to cover the obligations are made using the current salary
levels of employees.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current income tax is based on taxable income for the year, determined in accordance
with the prevailing law for taxation on income. The tax rates used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The charge for the current
income tax also includes tax credits and adjustments, where considered necessary, for prior years
determined during the year or otherwise considered necessary for such years.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not
in the profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, on all major temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset on
deductible temporary difference are recognised on carry-forward of unused tax losses and credits,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and / or carry-forward of unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit or loss except for deferred tax arising on recognition
of actuarial loss or gain which is charged to other comprehensive income.

Levies

In accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), computation of final taxes and
minimum tax differential is not based on taxable income. Therefore, as per the Guidance issued by
the ICAP, these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21 and IAS 37 and accordingly have been classified as
levies as more fully explained in note 2.1.3

Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except when the sales tax
incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable.

When sales tax is recoverable from or is payable to the taxation authority, it is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows include cash in hand and in transit,
balances with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and bank overdraft facilities.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, at fair value, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade debts, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, the transaction
costs. Trade debts are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL or
FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 63



i)

(SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test
and is performed at an instrument level. The Company’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at amortised cost

The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

+ thefinancial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for classification at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the financial assets held at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

The Company does not have financial assets designated at FVTOCI.
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

+ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

+ the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Company has not transferred neither retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all financial
instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Company applies the simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade debts. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade debts have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected credit loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of
72 months before December 31, 2024 and the corresponding historical default rates experienced
within this period. The historical default rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information according to macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. The Company has identified the Gross Domestic Product and the Consumer
Price Index of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical default rates based on expected changes in these factors.
The historical default rates are further adjusted with the impact of loss given default. The Loss
Given Default is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is the default. The Company estimates the
Loss Given Default parameters based on the history of recovery rates of defaulted trade debts.

The Company considers a financial asset to be at a risk of default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due, unless there are factors that might indicate otherwise. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.

2.12.2 Financial liabilities

i)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, bank overdraft
and short-term borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair

value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied.
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b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in profit or loss.

ili) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss.

2.12.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

213

2.14

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously.
Income and expenses arising from such assets and liabilities are also offset accordingly.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for asset is required then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining the fair value less cost of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if no such transaction can be identified,
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or available fair value budgets. The Company
bases its impairment calculation on detailed budget and forecast calculation, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company cash generating unit (CGU) to which individual assets are
allocated. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (“the cash-
generating unit, or CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date to reflect the current best estimate.
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2.16

2.16.1

2.16.2

2.17

A contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a present obligation that
arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the exchange rates
approximating those ruling on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing on the
reporting date. Gains and losses on translation are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring
them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on acknowledgment of the goods by the customer. The normal credit
term varies up to 210 days depending on the customer type.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g.,
right of returns). In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers
the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur as
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. In general, the
contracts for the sale of goods provides customer with a right to return of near expiry products.

Right of return

In general, the contracts for sales of goods provides a customer with a right to return near expiry
products. The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned
because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company may
not be entitled. The requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable consideration
are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For products that are expected to be returned, the Company recognises
a provision under refund liability and a corresponding adjustment in sales return. Returns for the
Company comprise of expired and near expiry products, which are of Nil value at the time of return
and are subject to destruction.
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2.18.1
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2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

Contract balances
Trade debts

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due. Accounting policies
of financial assets have been disclosed in note 2.12.1.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract i.e.
transfers control of related goods to the customer.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding
change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Other income

Interest income is accounted for using the effective interest rate method. Income other than interest
income is recorded on accrual basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting date but before the
financial statements are authorised for issue, disclosure is made in the financial statements.

Operating segments

For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organised into one operating segment
since Chief Operating Decision Maker i.e. the Board monitors the operating results of the Company
as a whole. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the nature
of the products, risks and returns, organisational and management structure, and internal financial
reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in these financial statements are related to the
Company’s only reportable segment.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the related disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Changes to these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future periods.
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2.24.2

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgement, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these financial
statements:

Contingencies (notes 2.14 and 22)

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as
the outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the
availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities, which
may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future events.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on the information available when these financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i) Property, plant and equipment (notes 2.3 and 3)

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value
used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable
amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these
estimates, Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in
the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant
and equipment, with corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

i) Stock-in-trade and stores and spares (notes 2.6, 2.7, 8 and 9)

The Company reviews the net realisable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the
respective carrying values and also reviews the inventories i.e. stock-in-trade and stores and
spares for obsolescence.

iii) Allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (notes 2.12.1 and 10)

The Company assesses the recoverability of its financial assets if there is objective evidence
that Company will not be able to collect all the amounts due according to the original terms.
Judgement by the management is required in estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows when determining the level of provision required and in determining the debts that are not
recoverable and are to be written off. The Company uses default rates based on provision matrix
for its customers who have similar characteristics to calculate Expected Credit Loss (ECL) for
trade debts. The rates in provision matrix are based on days past due for various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on Company’s
historical observed default rates which is then adjusted for forward looking information. The
assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates and the forecast
economic conditions and ECL are significant estimates. The amount of ECL is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast of economic conditions. The Company’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future.
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3.1

iv) Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns

For estimates with respect to right of return assets and related refund liabilities refer to notes
2.17 and 2.19 to these financial statements.

v) Retirement benefits (notes 2.8.1, 2.8.2 and 18)

The cost of the retirement benefit plan and the present value of the obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These includes the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

vi) Income tax (notes 2.10.1, 2.10.2 and 30)

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by appellate
authorities while recognising provision for income tax.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors,including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised and in any future periods affected.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT VSICH 2024\ 2023

(Rupees in thousand)

Fixed assets 3.1 1,958,243 1,653,580
Capital work-in-progress 3.2&3.3 189,165 124,185
2,147,408 1,777,765

Fixed assets

Owned assets ngah;;gI;use
Buildings on Electrical Total
Leasehold Plantand | Furniture Motor
land Iealgilbold machinery | and fixtures :g&:nf.fg,% vehicles g't’;"}g’}t,s

Year ended December 31, 2024 (Rupees in thousand)

Net carrying value basis
Opening net carrying value 244 456,099 717,881 8,217 152,475 318,664 - 1,653,580

Additions / transfers from
capital work-in-progress S

132,294 17,985 62,588 229,579 210,038 652,484

Disposals (note 3.1.3) - - - - (617) (51,691) - (52,208)
Depreciation charge (note 3.1.2) ©) (53,147) (127,667) (2,901) (54,232) (54,162) (3,501) (295,613)
Closing net carrying value 241 402,952 722,508 23,301 160,314 442,390 206,537 1,958,243
Gross carrying value basis

As at December 31, 2024

Cost 455 1216763 3474649 89411 660368 569457 210,038 6,221,141
Accumulated depreciation @14 (B13811) (@752141)  (66,110)  (500,054)  (127,067) (3501)  (4,262,898)
241 402952 722,508 23301 160314 442390 206537  1,058.243
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3.1.1

3.1.2

Owned assets R|gahstsgfsuse

Leasehold B;‘;L‘i';‘ﬁ;g" Plantand | Furniture °3?f,’§e Motor “;g}“"gﬁ{s Tota
land machinery | and fixtures equlpment vehicles | “note 19.1)

(Rupees in thousand)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Net carrying value basis

Opening net carrying value 247 441,390 653,675 10,644 165,093 335,743 - 1,606,792

Additions / transfers from

capital work-in-progress - 70,328 206,248 766 38,306 103,378 - 419,026

Disposals (note 3.1.3) - (456) - (67) (68,780) - (69,309)

Depreciation charge (note 3.1.2) ) (55,619) (141,586) (3,199 (50,857 (51,677) - (302,935)

Closing net carrying value 244 456,099 717,881 8,217 152,475 318,664 - 1,653,580

Gross carrying value basis

As at December 31, 2023

Cost 455 1,216,763 3,342,355 71,426 621,342 440,359 - 5,692,700

Accumulated depreciation 211) (760,664)  (2,624,474) (63,209) (468,867) (121,695) - (4,039,120)
244 456,099 717,881 8,217 152,475 318,664 - 1,653,580

Depreciation rate per annum (%) 1.23 5 10to 15 10 10t033  16.67 to 20 5

Particulars of the immovable assets of the Company are as follows:

Covered Area
(Sq. Meters)

Location Address Usage of
Immovable Property

Karachi Plot 23, Sector 22
Korangi Industrial
Area, Karachi

Head office and 96,155
Manufacturing Plants

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

NCIOMN 2024\ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

Cost of sales 24 193,321 201,851
Distribution and marketing costs 24 58,640 58,109
Administrative expenses 24 43,652 42,975

295,613 302,935

Details of disposal of each operating fixed asset having net book value exceeding Rs. 500,000 are
as follows:

Cost Accumulated| Net carrying Sale Gain/
Description depreciation|  value proceeds (Loss) Mode of Disposal Particulars of Buyers
(Rupees in thousand)

Motor vehicle 6,926 1,939 4,987 5,125 138 Company Policy  Tariq Naveed Khan (employeg)
Motor vehicle 3,954 712 3,242 3,281 39 Company Policy ~ Sharig Mehmood (employee)
Motor vehicle 3,928 1,061 2,867 2,907 40 Company Policy ~ Sohail Hassan (employee)

Motor vehicle 3,828 804 3,024 3,062 38 Company Policy ~ Maria Saquib (employee)

Motor vehicle 3272 589 2,683 2,683 - Company Policy ~ Faisal Hassan Khan (employeg)
Motor vehicle 3272 883 2,389 2,421 32 Company Policy ~ Faiq Mehfooz (employeg)

Motor vehicle 3,108 1,834 1,274 1,305 31 Company Policy Munzir Ishaq Rajput (employee)
Motor vehicle 3,004 1,802 1,202 1,202 - Company Policy ~ Omar Zahid (employee)

Motor vehicle 2,855 1,713 1,142 1,142 - Company Policy ~ Arfan Ahmad Rana (employeg)
Motor vehicle 2,854 1,712 1,142 1,142 - Company Policy Muhammad Ahsen Zeshan (employee)
Motor vehicle 2,675 1,049 1,626 1,653 27 Company Policy ~ Umar Akram (employee)

Motor vehicle 2,657 983 1,674 1,700 26 Company Policy  Irfan Hashmey (employeg)

Motor vehicle 2,657 1,222 1,435 1,461 26 Company Policy Imran Faraz (employee)

Motor vehicle 2,515 1,081 1,434 1,459 25 Company Policy ~ Zeeshan Ali (employee)

Motor vehicle 2,379 1,356 1,023 1,047 24 Insurance Claim Syed Muhammad Tahir (employeg)
Motor vehicle 2,304 1,382 922 922 - Company Policy ~ Shahzada Aurangzeb (employee)
Motor vehicle 2,229 1,337 892 892 - Company Policy ~ Sohail Akhtar (employeg)

Motor vehicle 2,114 1,268 846 846 - Company Policy ~ Khawaja Igbal Hasan Danish (employee)
Motor vehicle 2,074 1,244 830 830 - Company Policy ~ Syed M Irfan Ali (employee)

Motor vehicle 2,049 1,229 820 820 - Company Policy ~ Muhammad Khalid (employeg)
Motor vehicle 2,009 1,205 804 804 - Company Policy ~ Aisha Anwar (employeg)
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3.2

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

Cost Accumulated| Net carrying Sale Gain /
Description depreciation value proceeds (Loss) Mode of Disposal Particulars of Buyers
(Rupees in thousand)
18

Motor vehicle 1,780 783 997 1,015 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,745 1,047 698 698 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,745 1,047 698 698 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,745 1,047 698 698 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,745 1,047 698 698 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,745 1,047 698 698 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,745 1,047 698 698 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,483 890 593 593 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,483 890 593 593 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,476 886 590 590 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,476 886 590 590 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,440 864 576 576 - Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,410 818 592 606 14 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,410 846 564 564 - Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,380 828 552 552 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,340 804 536 536 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,340 804 536 536 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,340 804 536 536 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,340 804 536 536 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,340 804 536 536 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,340 804 536 536 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,300 780 520 520 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,270 762 508 508 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,270 762 508 508 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 1,270 762 508 508 Company Policy
Motor vehicle 860 516 344 344 Company Policy
100,481 48,784 51,697 52,175 478

Operating fixed assets

having net book value

not exceeding

Rs.500,000 23,562 23,051 511 1,366 855 Various

December 31,2024 124,043 71,835 52,208 53,541 1,333

December 31,2023 131,634 62,331 69,303 75,421 6,118

Capital work-in-progress
Note

Buildings on leasehold land
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Movement in capital work-in-progress is as follows:

Opening balance

Additions during the year 3.3.1
Transferred to operating fixed assets 3.3.2
Closing balance

Nadeem Ahmed (employee)

Junaid Ahmed Khan (employee)
Salar Ali employee)

Sarfaraz Ahmed Khan (employee)
Syed Tariq Ali (employeg)
Mohammad Azeem Akram Siddiqui (employee)
Syed Amir Ali (employee)

Kamran Ahmed (employeg)

M. Usman Rasheed (employee)

Bilal Zaidi (employeg)

Usman Ahmed Khan (employeg)
Irshad Muhammad (employee)
Owais Qadir (employee)

Imran Masood (employeg)

Shoaib Ahmed Khan (employee)
Asad Mehmood Malik (employee)
Syed Masood Yaseen (employee)
Muhammad Sheraz Quresh (employeg)
Taimoor Shahzad (employee)

Asfia Salahuddin (employee)

Fakhar Uddin Ahmed (employee)
Azhar Ali Khan (employee)

Waseem Tufail Chugtai (employee)
Aslam Farhan (employee)

Wagar Ahmed (employee)
Muhammad Rizwan Khan (employee)

Various

(Rupees in thousand)

7,312 -
101,836 104,353

80,017 19,832
189,165 124,185
124,185 277,468
396,526 200,497
(331,546)  (353,780)
189,165 124,185

Represents additions to buildings on leasehold land of Rs. 7.30 million (2023: Nil), plant and
machinery of Rs. 101.42 million (2023: Rs. 104.35 million) and motor vehicles of Rs. 287.81 million

(2023: Rs. 96.15 million).

Represents transfers to buildings on leasehold land of Nil (2023: Rs. 69.25 million), plant and
machinery of Rs.103.90 million (2023: Rs. 165.87 million), factory and office equipment of Nil (2023:
Rs. 15.77 million) and motor vehicles of Rs. 227.65 million (2023: Rs. 102.89 million).
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4.1

5.1

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Year ended December 31, 2024

Net carrying value basis
Opening net carrying value
Additions

Amortisation charge
Closing net carrying value

Gross carrying value basis
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying value

Year ended December 31, 2023

Net carrying value basis
Opening net carrying value
Additions

Amortisation charge
Closing net carrying value

Gross carrying value basis
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying value

Amortisation rate per annum (%)

Computer Software

(Rupees in thousand)

4,781 8,300 13,081
2,634 - 2,634
4.1 (3,034) (8,300) (11,334)
4,381 - 4,381
16,092 95,062 111,154
(11,711) (95,062)  (106,773)
4,381 - 4,381
2,330 327 2,657
5,216 15,771 20,987
4.1 (2,765) (7,798) (10,563)
4,781 8,300 13,081
13,458 95,062 108,520
(8,677) (86,762) (95,439)
4,781 8,300 13,081
33 33

The amortisation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Distribution and marketing costs
Administrative expenses

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Note mm

(Rupees in thousand)

24 274 255
24 2,966 2,765
24 8,094 7,543

11,334 10,563
5.1 29,463 31,212

Particulars of investment properties are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2024
Opening net carrying value
Depreciation charge (note 24)
Closing net carrying value

As at December 31, 2024
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying value

Buildings on
leasehold Total
land
(Rupees in thousand)

Leasehold

land

14 31,198 31,212
- (1,749) (1,749)
14 29,449 29,463
14 34,988 35,002
- (5,539) (5,539)
14 29,449 29,463
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5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

Leasehold Buildings on

(Rupees in thousand)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Opening net carrying value 14 32,947 32,961

Depreciation charge (note 24) - (1,749) (1,749)
Closing net carrying value 14 31,198 31,212
As at December 31, 2023

Cost 14 34,988 35,002
Accumulated depreciation - (3,790) (3,790)
Net carrying value 14 31,198 31,212
Depreciation rate per annum (%) 3.13 5

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

NSTCN 2024\ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

Rental income derived from investment properties 82,976 74,640
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and

maintenance) relating to investment properties 24 (18,585) (15,019)
Profit arising from investment properties carried at cost 26 64,391 59,621

As at December 31, 2024, the fair value and forced sales value of leasehold land amounts to Rs.
750 million (2023: Rs. 750 million) and Rs. 564.5 million (2023: Rs. 564.5 million), respectively, and of
buildings on leasehold land amounts to Rs. 55.5 million (2023: Rs. 52.3 million) and Rs. 41.62 million
(2023: Rs. 39.04 million), respectively, which are based on valuations performed by an accredited
independent valuer.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual
obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance

and enhancements.
VST 2024 \ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

LONG-TERM LOANS - considered good, unsecured

Loans to employees 6.1 8,994 6,446
Less: Current maturity 11 (3,338) (2,300)
5,656 4,146

Reconciliation of carrying amount of long-term loans to employees:

Opening balance 6,446 5,740
Disbursements 5,262 3,495
Repayments (2,714) (2,789)
Closing balance 6.2 8,994 6,446

Represents loans for the purchase of motor cars, motorcycles and capital goods, in accordance
with the Company’s policy. Loans for the purchase of motor cars and motorcycles are interest free,
whereas loans for purchase of capital goods carry interest at the rate of 9% (2023: 9%) per annum.
These are repayable within five years in equal monthly instalments, except for loans for purchase of

capital goods which are repayable over a period of three years.

(Rupees in thousand)

DEFERRED TAX ASSET - NET

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

- Accelerated tax depreciation (90,068) (79,674)

- Defined benefit plans (4,075) (4,811)
(94,143) (84,485)

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

- Allowance for expected credit loss 204,824 154,386

- Provision against stores & spares and stock-in-trade 170,876 102,205

- Others 70,376 39,797
446,076 296,388
351,933 211,903
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8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

Note mm

STORES AND SPARES (Rupees in thousand)
Stores 44,213 45,671
Spares 43,027 42,801
87,240 88,472
Provision against stores and spares 8.1 (3,594) (763)
83,646 87,709
Movement of provision against stores
and spares is as follows:
Opening balance 763 763
Charge for the year - net 2,831 -
Closing balance 3,594 763
STOCK-IN-TRADE - net
Raw and packing material
In hand 9.2 3,146,282 2,000,372
In transit 121,789 312,670
3,268,071 2,313,042
Provision against raw and packing material 9.1 (330,900) (57,430)
2,937,171 2,255,612
Work-in-process 105,320 99,848
Finished goods
In hand 9.2 4,503,828 1,706,331
In transit 346,755 245,936
4,850,583 1,952,267
Provision against finished goods 9.3 (1083,650) (212,887)
4,746,933 1,739,380
9.4 7,789,424 4,094,840
Movement of provision against raw
and packing material is as follows:
Opening balance 57,430 103,521
Charge for the year 301,913 31,245
Reversal for the year (19,347) (60,456)
Net charge / (reversal) for the year 24 282,566 (29,211)
Write-off during the year (9,096) (16,880)
Closing balance 330,900 57,430

Includes write down of raw and packing material costing Nil (2023: Rs. 27.1 million), to their net
realisable value of Nil (2023: Rs. 23.2 million). Includes write down of finished goods costing Rs.
164.04 million (2023: Rs. 379.4 million), carried at their net realisable value of Rs. 138.75 million
(2023: Rs. 328 million).

Movement of provision against finished goods is as follows:

NCIOM 2024\ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

Opening balance 212,887 171,169
Charge for the year 56,177 127,433
Reversal for the year (7,662) (7,966)
Net charge for the year 24 48,515 119,467
Write-off during the year (157,752) (77,749)
Closing balance 103,650 212,887
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9.4

10

10.1

11

111

12

121

Details of stock-in-trade (net of provision) Note M

held with third party is as follows: (Rupees in thousand)

Stancos (Private) Limited 131,436 80,976

TRADE DEBTS - net, unsecured

Considered good 805,073 572,014
Considered doubtful 369,928 254,213
1,175,001 826,227

Allowance for expected credit loss 10.1 (369,928) (254,213)
805,073 572,014

Movement of allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:

Opening balance 254,213 190,803
Charge for the year 115,715 63,410
369,928 254,213

LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured, considered good

Loans:

Current maturity of long-term loans to employees 6 3,338 2,300

Advances:

Executives 5,821 6,182

Contractors and suppliers 11.1 200,972 91,280
206,793 97,462
210,131 99,762

Represents advance payments made to contractors and suppliers against goods and services to be
received in future.

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

SR 2024\ 2023 |

) (Rupees in thousand)
Trade deposits - unsecured

Considered good 63,934 125,423
Considered doubtful 155,263 155,263
219,197 280,686

Allowance for expected credit loss 12.1 (155,263) (155,263)
63,934 125,423

Margin against letters of credit 429,333 288,084
Short-term prepayments 32,375 37,936
525,642 451,443

Movement of allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:

Opening balance 155,263 171,668
Reversal for the year - (16,405)
Closing balance 155,263 155,263
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OTHER RECEIVABLES - net

NN 2024\ 2023 |

. (Rupees in thousand)
Considered good - unsecured

Due from - related parties 13.1 4,916 -
- employees’ gratuity fund 18.1 15,386 25,522
- others 49,568 35,240
Sales tax receivable on goods 324 4,721
70,194 65,483
Considered doubtful - unsecured
Sales tax refundable 5,918 5,918
Provision against sales tax refundable (5,918) (5,918)
70,194 65,483

The aging analysis of receivable from related parties is as follows:

December 31, 2024

Neither Past due

past due nor| over 181
impaired days
(Rupees in thousand)

Packages Limited 507 - 507
Bulleh Shah Packaging (Pvt.) Limited 1,096 - 1,096
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 3,313 - 3,313

4,916 - 4,916

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding from related parties at any time during the year by
reference to month end balances is as follows:

NSTON 2024\ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

Packages Limited 507 -
Bulleh Shah Packaging (Pvt.) Limited 1,096 -
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 3,313 -

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss

Number Rupees Number Rupees
Investment in mutual funds: of units in ‘000 of units in ‘000
Bank Al Habib Money Market Fund 4,168,881 452,884 8,867,360 887,680
NBP Income Fund - Cash Plan Il - - 91,725 919
MCB Pakistan Cash Management Fund = = 9,557 483

4,168,881 452,884 8,968,642 889,082
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15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 18
Note EZEANEFIT-EE

(Rupees in thousand) 18.1
Cash in hand 184 47

Cash at banks
In current accounts - local currency 100,922 79,757

- foreign currency - 13,928

100,922 93,685

In savings accounts - local currency 15.1 18,690 23,641
119,796 117,373

15.1  These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 13.50% to 20.50% (2023: 14.50% to 20.75%) per annum.

16 SHARE CAPITAL

No. of shares (Rupees in thousand)

Authorized share capital

10,000,000 10,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 100,000 100,000
Issued, subscribed and paid
up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
2,757,783 2,757,783 Issued for cash 27,578 27,578
3,359,477 3,359,477 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 33,595 33,595
687,500 687,500 Issued against plant and equipment 6,875 6,875
140,000 140,000 Issued against loan 1,400 1,400

Issued pursuant to merger with

Rhone Poulenc Rorer Pakistan
2,700,000 2,700,000 (Private) Limited 27,000 27,000
9,644,760 9,644,760 96,448 96,448

16.1  The Parent Company held 3,960,919 (2023: 3,960,919) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each, of the
Company representing 41.07% of the shareholding.

16.2  Voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal, block voting and other shareholders’ rights are
in proportion to their shareholding in the Company.

7 RESERVES Note  IETTEEANEETT

. (Rupees in thousand)
Capital reserves

Long-term liabilities forgone 5,935 5,935
Other capital reserve 17.1 2,000,000 -

Difference of share capital under scheme of
arrangement for amalgamation 18,000 18,000
Share-based payments reserve 375,210 375,210
2,399,145 399,145

Revenue reserves

General reserve 1,535,538 3,535,538
Unappropriated profit 2,783,812 1,440,307

4,319,350 4,975,845
6,718,495 5,374,990

17.1  During the year, the Company has transferred Rs. 2,000 million from general reserves to other
capital reserves as approved by the Board of Directors (the Board) in its meeting held on February
22, 2024 for the purposes of issuance of bonus shares, if any, from time to time as the Board may
deem fit. Such a transfer has been made in line with the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan circular no. 4 of 2024 dated February 15, 2024.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

Actuarial valuation of the Gratuity Fund was carried out as at December 31, 2024. The present value
of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method. The details

(Rupees in thousand)

of the actuarial valuation are as follows:

Statement of financial position reconciliation
is as follows:

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Net asset in statement of financial position

Movement in net assets

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Employer contribution

Employees transferred from group companies

Actuarial gain recognised in other comprehensive income
Closing balance

Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Actual return on plan assets

Movement in the defined benefit obligation
Opening balance

Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Employees transferred from group companies
Actuarial loss / (gain)

Closing balance

Movement in fair value of plan assets
Opening balance

Expected return on plan assets
Employer contribution

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain

Closing balance

Actuarial gain arising from
Changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Key actuarial assumptions used are as follows
Discount factor used

Expected rate of return per annum on plan assets

Long term salary increase rate per annum

798,159 656,152
(782,773) (630,630
15,386 25,522
25,522 (32,844)
(42,171) (57,431)
11,140 38,747
- (1,900)
20,895 78,950
15,386 25,522
48,430 55,593
91,894 85,322
(98,153) (83,484)
42,171 57,431
187,827 113,906
630,630 642,106
48,430 55,593
91,894 85,322
(56,960)  (105,763)
- 1,900
68,779 (48,528)
782,773 630,630
656,152 609,262
98,153 83,484
11,140 38,747
(56,960)  (105,763)
89,674 30,422
798,159 656,152
(49,974)  (101,698)
29,079 22,748
(20,895) (78,950)
12.25% 15.50%
12.25% 15.50%
11.75% 14.50%

Estimates of future salary increase takes into account inflation, seniority and promotion. Having
regard to the actual salary increase rate of current year and the future expectation of the Company,
the management’s actuary has assumed that the short-term salary increase rate to be used is
14.40% (2023: 12%) per annum and for long term 11.75% (2023: 14.50%) per annum compounded.
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(Rupees in thousand)

Weighted average duration (years) 6.05 5.13

The effective duration of the future cash flows was calculated based on the yields available on
government bonds at the end of the reporting period.

Gratuity Fund
2024\ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

Retirement age (years) 60 years 60 years

Withdrawal rate Moderate Moderate

Mortality rate SLIC 2001 - 2005

Rs in ‘000 % Rs in ‘000 %

Sensitivity analysis for Gratuity Fund

Present Value (PV) of Defined benefit
obligation as at the reporting date 782,773 630,630

Following shall be the PV under
various sensitivities:

+1% Discount rate 738,479 -5.66% 600,613 -7.46%
-1% Discount rate 832,321 6.33% 663,752 8.50%
+1% Salary increase rate 835,600 6.75% 665,757 8.93%
-1% Salary increase rate 734,787 -6.13% 598,290 -7.95%
+10% Withdrawal rates 782,064 0.09% 630,919 -0.09%
-10% Withdrawal rates 783,492 -0.09% 630,268 0.09%
1 year mortality age set back 782,736 0.00% 630,573 0.01%
1 year mortality age set forward 782,810 0.00% 630,688 -0.01%

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the
impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the year end. The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in a significant assumption,
keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an
actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would

occur in isolation from one another.

Maturity profile (Rupees in thousand)

Year 1 122,560 88,188
Year 2 82,830 105,025
Year 3 98,080 84,645
Year 4 74,890 99,674
Year 5 112,020 77,391
Year 6 to Year 10 470,700 494,040
Year 11 and above 1,272,270 1,136,778
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19.1

Rs in ‘000 % Rs in ‘000 %
Plan assets comprise of:
Equity 221,020 27.68% 136,908 20.86%
Cash and cash equivalents 160,601 20.12% 81,678 12.45%
Debt 416,538 52.20% 437,566 66.69%
798,159 100% 656,152 100%

Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Longevity Risk:

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured
at the plan level over the entire retiree population.

Salary Increase Risk:

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary.
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability
accordingly.

Withdrawal Risk:

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

Investment Risk:

The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities. This is
managed by formulating an investment policy and guidelines based on which investments are made
after obtaining approval from trustees of the gratuity fund.

The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depends upon the
asset portfolio of the plan at the beginning of the period.

The Company contributes to the Gratuity Fund on the advice of the funds’ actuary. The contributions
are equal to the current service cost with adjustment for any deficit. Based on the actuarial advice,
the amount of expected contribution to Gratuity Fund for the year 2025 is Rs. 51.109 million.

Note mm

(Rupees in thousand)

LEASE LIABILITY

Opening balance -
Additions 19.1 210,038 -

Finance cost charged during the year 27 13,809 -
Payments made during the year (12,371) -
211,476 -
Less: Current maturity of lease liability (2,001) -
209,475 -

This represents lease arrangement entered during the year for deployment of solar panels and
related equipment on the Company’s premises. The lease has a term of 15 years, after which the
ownership of solar panels and related equipment will transfer to the Company. Consequently, the
solar panels and related equipments are being depreciated based on their estimated useful life of
20 years as mentioned in note 3.1.
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20

20.1

20.2

Annual cumulative rentals of the solar panels carries finance charge at the rate of 19.69%. The
amount of future payments against the right-of-use asset and the period in which these become due
are as follows:

Present
Minimum value of
lease minimum
payments lease
payments
Not later than one year 2,001 2,001
Later than one year 651,489 209,474
653,490 211,475
Less: Finance charges allocated to future periods 442,015 -
211,475 211,475

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

NOIOMN 2024\ 2023 |

H Rupees in thousand
Trade creditors (Rup )

Related parties 21,287 5,041
Other trade creditors 1,108,078 1,835,906
1,129,365 1,840,947
Other payables
Accrued liabilities 2,360,313 1,307,062
Refund liabilities 140,084 83,556
Infrastructure Development Cess 2211 1,012,980 728,223
Workers’ Profits’ Participation Fund 20.1 187,415 48,911
Workers’ Welfare Fund 20.2 148,261 85,372
Central Research Fund 20.3 37,737 9,866
Compensated absences 114,052 122,434
Security deposits 20.4 15,576 15,576
Contractors’ retention money 6,359 8,846
Sales tax payable 20,897 21,884
Others 23,309 -

4,066,983 2,431,730
5,196,348 4,272,677

Movement of Workers’ Profits’ Participation Fund (the Fund) is as follows:

NI 2024\ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

Opening balance 48,911 43,253
Allocation for the year 25 187,415 48,911
236,326 92,164
Amount paid to the Fund (48,911) (43,253)
Closing balance 187,415 48,911

Movement of Workers’ Welfare Fund is as follows:

Opening balance 85,372 96,813
Allocation for the year 25 79,487 22,235

164,859 119,048
Amount paid to the Fund (16,598) (33,676)
Closing balance 148,261 85,372
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Movement of Central Research Fund is as follows:

SN 2024\ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

Opening balance 9,866 7,868
Allocation for the year 25 37,842 9,866

47,708 17,734
Amount paid to the Fund (9,971) (7,868)
Closing balance 37,737 9,866

Represent unutilised security deposits received from various vendors / contractors, kept in a

separate bank account.
ICH 2024\ 2023

(Rupees in thousand)

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Working capital facilities 21.1 1,200,000 -

During the year, the Company has obtained working capital facilities from various commercial banks
under mark-up arrangements aggregating to Rs. 2,500 million out of which facilities amounting to
Rs. 1,300 million remained unutilised as at December 31, 2024. These facilities are secured against
first registered joint pari passu charge over current assets of the Company, inclusive but not limited
to stock-in-trade and book debts of the Company. These facilities carry mark-up at the rate of
KIBOR - 1.40% and will expire latest by June 30, 2025.

The Company also have running finance facilities available from various commercial banks under
mark-up arrangements aggregating to Rs. 5,575 million (2023: Rs. 2,450 million) which remained
unutilised as at December 31, 2024 and 2023. These facilities are secured against first registered joint
pari passu charge over current assets of the Company, inclusive but not limited to stock-in-trade and
book debts of the Company. These facilities carry mark-up rates ranging between KIBOR + 0.10% to
0.50% (2023: KIBOR + 0.10% to 0.40%) per annum and will expire latest by September 30, 2025.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Government of Sindh through Sindh Finance Act, 1994 imposed infrastructure fee for
development and maintenance of infrastructure on goods entering or leaving the Province of
Sindh through air or sea at prescribed rates. Several companies contested the imposition of this
infrastructure fee in High Court of Sindh (HCS). Through the interim order passed on May 31, 2011,
the HCS had ordered that for every consignment cleared after December 28, 2006, 50% of the
value of infrastructure fee should be paid in cash and a bank guarantee for the remaining amount
should be submitted until the final order is passed. Later, the Company started to deposit cash and
bank guarantees on import of goods and also started recognising accrual for the unpaid amount
for which bank guarantee was submitted. On June 04, 2021, the HCS dismissed appeals filed by
the petitioners and ordered that the Sindh Finance Act, 2017 is a valid law with the competence
of provincial legislature and all bank guarantees previously furnished by the petitioners against the
HCS'’s interim order dated May 31, 2011 shall be en-cashed and paid to the department.

The Company, in consultation with its legal advisor, filed an appeal before the Supreme Court of
Pakistan (SCP) against the HCS’s order dated June 04, 2021 jointly with other petitioners. SCP
provided leave to appeal against the orders of HCS vide CP No. 4913/2021 dated September 01,
2021 with the directions that till the further order of SCP, the operations of impugned judgment of
the HCS dated June 04, 2021 and recovery of the impugned levy shall remain suspended. The
petitioners were ordered to submit fresh bank guarantees equivalent to the amount of levy for all
future consignments of imported goods. Based on the advice of the legal advisor, the Company has
recognised provision against the fee payable (note 20).

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), initiated monitoring proceedings u/s 156/161
of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for Tax Year 2009 vide letter dated November 12,
2010. The Company filed constitutional petition before the HCS who remanded back the matter
vide order dated December 24, 2012. After disposal of constitutional petition, the proceedings were
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22.1.3

22.1.4

22.1.5

reinitiated by DCIR vide his letter dated December 26, 2012 requiring the Company to explain
its position on advertisement and sales promotion expenses amounting to Rs. 203.963 million.

In the order dated April 29, 2013, issued under section 161/205 of the Ordinance, the DCIR had
imposed tax under section 161 of the Ordinance amounting to Rs. 11.663 million for non deduction
of tax under section 156 of the Ordinance from certain payments under the head ‘Advertisement
and Sales Promotion’.

The Company filed constitutional petition before the HCS who restrained the tax department from
any coercive recovery measure in respect of the impugned demand till disposal of the petition.
The department, however, later adjusted this outstanding demand without issuance of any
recovery notice to the Company, against refunds pertaining to Tax Year 2012. The HCS dismissed
the petition on May 25, 2013 and directed the petitioner to persue departmental hierarchy.

The Company then filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)]
against the impugned order. The CIR(A) disposed-off the appeal vide order dated August 25,
2015 remanding back the matter to the department. The Company filed an appeal against the
CIR(A)’s order before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) dated October 05, 2015. The
ATIR passed an order on January 13, 2022 against the Company and dismissed the appeal.
The Company filed a reference before the HCS in March 2022, hearing of which is still pending.

The Company also filed a rectification application before the ATIR who allowed the application
vide order dated July 29, 2022 and remanded back the matter to the tax officer. The remand back
proceedings are still pending to be heard.

The Company’s case was selected in the Parametric balloting done for selection of cases for audit
for the Tax Year 2011 on February 25, 2013 by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) under section
214C of the Ordinance. The Company filed a representation against the said selection before
the review panel of the FBR in terms of circular dated February 25, 2013. Without prejudice to
the representation against the audit selection, the Company made complete compliance to the
Information Document Request (IDR) notice dated April 04, 2013. Later, the DCIR issued the show
cause notice under section 122(9) of the Ordinance to which the Company made compliance.
However, the DCIR issued amended order dated June 17, 2014 and made additions of Rs.
124.115 million on various expenses. The Company filed an appeal against the DCIR order before
the CIR-A, who vide order dated September 10, 2015 had disposed-off the appeal but upheld
additions of sundry promotional expenses of Rs. 36.973 million. Accordingly, the Company
filed appeal before the ATIR which maintained the disallowance of Rs. 36.973 million vide order
dated July 14, 2021. The Company filed a constitutional petition against the ATIR order and
rectification application was also filed with the ATIR by the Company dated September 06, 2021.

The ATIR passed order in favor of the Company and allowed the aforementioned expenses through
order dated November 29, 2021. Further, the department’s appeal for Tax Year 2011 challenging
Commissioner Appeal’s verdict to delete the disallowances at Rs. 87.142 million has been dismissed
by the ATIR vide order dated July 06, 2022. The Department has filed an appeal before the HCS
against the ATIR order, hearing of which is still pending.

The DCIR, amended the deemed assessment vide order dated January 1, 2018, for Tax Year 2014
increasing the tax liability by Rs. 275.6 million due to disallowance of certain expenses, hence,
adjusting the tax refundable as assessed by the Company in the tax return. The Company was
required to pay an amount of Rs.110.6 million being the short payment on account of reassessed
tax liability. The Company paid the said amount under protest and filed an appeal with the CIR(A)
against the said order. The CIR(A) decided on the above issue against the Company vide order
dated May 6, 2019. The Company filed an appeal dated through July 12, 2019 thereagainst with the
ATIR, which is pending to be heard.

The DCIR, initiated audit proceedings under section 177 read with 214C and clause 72B of Part-IV
of Second Schedule of the Ordinance for Tax Year 2016 by issuing a notice dated March 06, 2019
which was responded by the Company on April 09, 2019. Upon completion of the proceedings
under section 177(6) of the Ordinance, notice u/s 122(9) of the Ordinance was issued by the DCIR on
May 06, 2022 against which the Company filed a constitutional petition before the HCS and interim
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stay order was granted to the Company dated May 24, 2022. During the year, the HCS, in its final
order, has granted the petiton in favor of Company by declaring the above said impugned show
cause notice barred by time.

The DCIR, issued a notice dated March 06, 2019 under section 177 read with 214C and clause
72B of part IV of Second Schedule of the Ordinance for Tax Year 2017 in lieu of exemption granted
to the Company for collection of tax at import stage. The Company had initially responded to
the notice through various letters that the subject audit proceedings were time barred and hence
without jurisdiction. Instead of replying to these jurisdictional objections, the DCIR again issued a
notice dated October 13, 2022. The Company again responded to the notice on legal grounds on
November 7, 2022. The DCIR issued notice dated November 18, 2022 under section 122(9) of the
Ordinance, against the Company. The Company then filed a constitutional petition before the HCS
which restrained the tax department from proceeding further on the notice till disposal of petition.
The petition is pending before the HCS.

The DCIR, issued a notice dated March 06, 2019 under section 177 read with 214C and clause 72B
of part IV of Second Schedule of the Ordinance for Tax Year 2018 in lieu of exemption granted to the
Company for collection of tax at import stage. The Company had initially responded to the notice
through various letters that the subject audit proceedings were time barred and hence without
jurisdiction. Instead of replying to these jurisdictional objections, the DCIR again issued a notice
dated October 17, 2022 for Tax Year 2018. The Company then filed a suit on legal grounds before
the HCS which issued favorable order on March 30, 2023 and restrained the tax department from
proceeding further on the notices till disposal of the case.

The Federal Government, vide Finance Act, 2022, imposed super tax levy under section 4C of
the Ordinance for the Tax Year 2022 and onwards. The Company had filed a civil petition in the
HCS primarily challenging the retrospective application of the levy for Tax Year 2022. The HCS
vide order dated September 30, 2022 issued an injunction order allowing the Company to file the
return without paying the super tax. The HCS passed a favorable order dated December 22, 2022
in this case. The FBR filed an appeal in the SCP against the order passed by the HCS which is
pending adjudication. The SCP in its interim order, directed companies to deposit super tax levy
to the extent of 4% of the taxable amount and submit security of remaining 6% of the taxable
amount for the Tax Year 2022. The Company has complied with the interim directives of the SCP.

The DCIR, issued a notice dated March 8, 2023 to provide a further explanation regarding the
recovery of super tax under section 4C of the Ordinance for Tax Year 2022 to which the Company
had responded that the amount has been deposited in compliance with the SCP directives. The
DCIR passed an unfavorable order thereagainst creating an additional demand of Rs. 6 million.
The Company filed an appeal before the CIR(A) aganist the DCIR order along with rectification
application with DCIR for correction in the order. The CIR(A) vide its order dated July 27, 2023
upheld the impugned order of the DCIR and ordered him to dispose-off the rectification application
accordingly. The Company has filed an appeal before the ATIR against the CIR(A) order, the hearing
of which is pending.

The Federal Government, vide Finance Act, 2023, increased the rates of super tax levy under
section 4C of the Ordinance for Tax Year 2023 and onwards. The Company filed a writ petition
in the Islamabad High Court (IHC) against the retrospective increase of the rates of super tax for
Tax Year 2023. IHC, issued favorable order on March 15, 2024, whereby, the IHC decided that 6%
incremental super tax is not applicable retrospectively on Tax Year 2023 and prior periods. Further,
the IHC also ruled that the super tax should be calculated excluding all the income which falls under
the final tax regime. The FBR has filed an intra court appeal with the IHC against the said order,
which is pending adjudication. However, the Company on account of prudence has continued to
maintain provision in respect of 6% incremental super tax in these financial statements.

22.1.10 The DCIR passed an order dated April 30, 2015 under section 122(5) of the Ordinance for Tax

Year 2013, increasing the tax liability by Rs.129.137 million on the contention that the Company
understated the gain on sale of property and claimed certain expenses related to sales promotion
and advertisement, which should have been disallowed. The Company filed an appeal before the
CIR(A), wherein the CIR(A) vide order dated July 19, 2018, deleted the addition for gain on disposal
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of property and remanded back the additions related to sales promotion and advertisements. An
appeal dated October 2, 2018, was filed with the ATIR against the said decision of the CIR(A) on the
issue remanded back, which is still pending.

The DCIR vide order dated June 30, 2021 passed an appeal effect order to give effect to matters
remanded back and deleted by CIR(A). The Company also filed a rectification application against
this order in respect of certain computational errors and not giving credit for refund adjustment at
Rs. 72.137 million [debited from the Tax Year 2014] which was rectified by the DCIR vide its order
dated July 29, 2021 and accordingly the Company’s tax refundable was increased to Rs. 110.343
million. The Company further filed an appeal with CIR(A) against the said order of DCIR in respect of
certain additions maintained, which was concluded on January 26, 2023 and the refund adjustment
was reversed among other aspects addressed resulting in a tax refundable of Rs. 49.46 million.
Based on verification of the refund filed by the Company, the DCIR through its order dated April 2,
2024 under section 170(4) of the Ordinance has issued tax refund of Rs. 19.734 million under section
170 of the Ordinance whilst the remaining refund of Rs. 29.917 million is pending for verification with
tax authorities.

The Company, based on advice from its tax and legal advisors, is confident for favourable outcomes
on the above-mentioned matters disclosed in notes 22.1.1 to 22.1.10. Hence, no provision has been
recognised in these financial statements in respect of these orders, except for matters mentioned
in notes 22.1.1, 22.1.8 and 22.1.9, for which the provision has been recognised as an abundant

caution based on prudence.
ICH 2024\ 2023 |

Commitments (Rupees in thousand)

Capital expenditure 57,122 324,317
Acquisition of trademarks 22.2.1 811,048 -
Outstanding letters of credit 22.2.2 567,651 568,377
Outstanding bank guarantees 22.2.2 1,190,338 845,428
Outstanding bank contracts 954,136 3,017,725

Represents commitment amounting to Rs. 811.048 million for acquisition of certain products along
with the associated trademarks from Sanofi affiliates under transfer and assignment agreements as
approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on June 11, 2024. At present, these products
are being marketed / manufactured by the Company under licensing arrangements with Sanofi
affiliates.

Total available facilities for letters of credit and bank guarantees amounts to Rs. 6,693 million and
Rs. 1,236 million (2023: Rs. 3,210 million and Rs. 894 million), respectively.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases for investment properties

as at the reporting dates are as follows:

(Rupees in thousand)

Within one year 72,767 64,391

The Company has entered into an operations and maintenance contract with Shams Power for its
solar panels and related equipment. The financial commitments under this contract are as follows:

(Rupees in thousand)

Within one year 2,064 -

More than one year 36,419 -
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23

23.1

24

241

REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Note mm

(Rupees in thousand)
Gross Sales

Local 28,063,174 22,833,524
Export 1,355,517 793,039
29,418,691 23,626,563
Toll manufacturing 86,747 125,690
29,505,438 23,752,253
Less:
Discounts (2,333,058) || (1,860,715)
Returns (124,912) (272,903)
Sales tax (299,640) (249,686)
(2,757,610) (2,383,304)

23.1 26,747,828 21,368,949

Includes contract liabilities of Rs. 84.89 million (2023: Rs. 153.57 million) realised during the year.

OPERATING COSTS

(Rupees in thousand)

Raw and packing material consumed 9,663,938 7,589,107 - - - - 9,663,938 7,589,107
Raw and packing material written-off 2,457 7211 - - - - 2,457 7,211
Provision / (Reversal of Provision) against stores and
spares & raw and packing material (notes 8.1 and 9.1) 285,397 (29,211) - - - - 285,397 (29,211)
Stores and spares consumed 40,172 66,669 - - - - 40,172 66,669
Stationery and supplies consumed 15,488 12,305 29,382 12,082 9,629 8,871 54,499 33,258
Staff costs (note 24.1) 1,098,903 888,370 1,497,682 1,213,894 651,612 472,105 3,248,197 2,574,369
Fuel and power 787,289 588,703 6,770 4,359 53,105 49,083 847,164 642,145
Rent, rates and taxes 54,140 52,761 29,492 20,248 - - 83,632 73,009
Insurance 37,684 22,237 68,838 50,442 4,827 3197 111,349 75,876
Repairs and maintenance 254,414 218,141 41,185 20,148 35,785 13,768 331,384 252,057
Depreciation of fixed assets (note 3.1.2) 193,321 201,851 58,640 58,109 43,652 42,975 295,613 302,935
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 4.1) 274 255 2,966 2,765 8,094 7,543 11,334 10,563
Depreciation of investment properties (note 5.1) - - - - 1,749 1,749 1,749 1,749
Travelling and conveyance 41,155 67,227 333,712 250,962 66,053 42,097 440,920 360,286
Handling, freight and transportation - - 338,846 303,052 - - 338,846 303,052
Communication 5,409 7,775 26,331 32,949 7,992 10,599 39,732 115,323
Security and maintenance 26,325 46,694 14,630 10,979 40,070 17913 81,025 75,586
Publication and subscription 4,140 184 8,356 9,285 344 8,444 12,840 17,913
Electronic and print media - - 12,787 41,331 - - 12,787 41,331
Conferences and exhibitions 0 . 329,632 161,248 - . 329,632 161,248
Market research - - 73,670 71,905 - - 73,670 71,905
Clinical trials - - 22 19 - - 22 19
Patient care - - 50,265 50,780 - - 50,265 50,780
Samples - - 1,050 10,512 - - 1,050 10,512
Sales promotion - - 104,759 100,826 - - 104,759 100,826
Sales commission . 283,454 192,293 - . 283,454 192,293
Software license / maintenance fee 1,183 180 4,325 2,447 108,808 133,572 114,316 136,199
Others 1,153 24,574 12,474 20,712 42,016 7,654 55,643 52,940
12,512,842 9,829,093 3,329,268 2,641,347 1,073,736 819,570 16,915,846 13,290,010
Recovery of expenses (note 5.2) (18,585) (15,019) - - - - (18,585) (15,019)
12,494,257 9,814,074 3,329,268 2,641,347 1,073,736 819,570 16,897,261 13,274,991
Opening work-in-process 99,848 120,918
Closing work-in-process (105,320) (99,848)
Cost of goods manufactured 12,488,785 9,835,144
Opening stock of finished goods 1,952,267 2,894,128
Finished goods purchased 8,632,848 4,877,921
Cost of samples included under
distribution and marketing costs (1,051) (10,512)
Finished goods written-off 49,510 78,625
Provision against finished goods (note 9.3) 48,515 119,467
Closing stock of finished goods (4,850,583) (1,952,267)
18,320,291 15,842,506
Staff costs:
Salaries, wages and other benefits 1,050,968 840,956 1,407,038 1,124,813 623,935 426,696 3,081,941 2,392,465
Training 2,092 189 7,166 359 4,094 273 13,352 821
Defined benefit plans (note 18.1) 8,543 13,537 26,239 28,070 7,389 15,824 217 57,431
Defined contribution plans (note 24.2) 37,300 31,873 57,239 57,754 16,194 25,519 110,733 115,146
Share-based payments - 1.815 - 2,898 - 3793 - 8,506
1,098,903 888,370 1,497,682 1,213,894 651,612 472,105 3,248,197 2,574,369
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24.2

Investments out of provident fund have been made in collective investment schemes, listed equity
and listed debt securities in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the

conditions specified thereunder.
ICH 2024\ 2023 |

25 OTHER EXPENSES (Rupees in thousand)
Auditors’ remuneration 251 4,031 5,834
Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 20.1 187,415 48,911
Workers’ Welfare Fund 20.2 79,487 22,235
Central Research Fund 20.3 37,842 9,866
Legal and consultancy 259,171 123,389
Donations 25.2 8,709 -
Exchange (gain) / loss - net 25.3 (57,436) 1,103,990

519,219 1,314,225

25.1  Auditors’ remuneration
Fee for:

- Statutory audit 2,454 2,045
- Review of half yearly financial statements 570 475
- Audit of special purpose financial statements - 1,000
- Review of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance 216 180
- Other certifications 300 1,500
Out-of-pocket expenses 491 634

4,031 5,834

25.2 This includes donation made to Packages Foundation amounting to Rs. 7.22 million (2023: Nil).
Syed Hyder Ali, the director of the Company is also the trustee of Packages Foundation.

25.3 This is net-off exchange loss on import payables amounting to Rs. 100.03 million (2023: net-off
exchnage gain on other receivables, bank balances and import payables of Rs. 122.04 million).

26 OTHER INCOME

NOIOMN 2024\ 2023 |

Income from financial assets (Rupees in thousand)

Markup on
- savings bank accounts 4,080 54,508
- bank placements 26.1 - 26,368
Gain on disposal of mutual funds 27,193 -
Fair value gain on remeasurement of mutual funds 3,708 -
Dividend income from mutual funds 83,732 27,390
118,713 108,266
Income from non-financial assets
Rental income from investment properties - net 5.2 64,391 59,621
Insurance claim 15,194 62,100
Deferred income on capital grant 9,000 9,000
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - net 3.1.3 1,333 6,118
Scrap sales 25,729 41,471
Reversal of provision against stamp duty - 100,000
115,647 278,310
234,360 386,576

26.1  Thisincludes mark-up income at rates ranging from 13.5% to 20.5% per annum on bank placements,

with conventional banks.
27 FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:

- short-term borrowings and bank overdraft
- lease liability

Bank charges

28 MINIMUM TAX DIFFERENTIAL

This represents unrecoupable minimum tax paid under section 148 of the Income Tax Ordinance,

2001 (the Ordinance).
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(Rupees in thousand)

46,618 76,838
13,809 -
84,090 97,935
144,517 174,773

29

30

30.1

31

32

32.1

FINAL TAX

This includes final tax paid under section 154 of the Ordinance till June 30, 2024 amounting to Rs. 6.94
million. This levy was subsequently ammended to a minimum tax through Finance Act, 2024.

(Restated)

(Rupees in thousand)

INCOME TAX

Current - for the year 1,451,785 389,779
- for prior years (12,974) 51,486
1,438,811 441,265
Deferred (144,104) (71,026)
1,294,707 370,239
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit:
Profit before income tax 3,151,854 731,046
Tax calculated at the rate of 29% (2023: 29%) 914,038 212,003
Effect of:
- prior year (reversal) / charge (12,974) 51,486
- super tax 335,565 98,671
- change in tax rate - (32,601)
- income not subject to income tax / subject to income tax
at lower tax rate 58,078 41,600
- others - (920)
1,294,707 370,239

SHARIAH RELATED DISCLOSURES

Coventional Shariah Total Coventional Shariah Total
Compliant Compliant

Note (Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

Statement of financial position
Lease liability 19 211,476 - 211,476 - - -
Short-term borrowings 21 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 - - -
Accrued mark-up 13,922 - 13,922 2,034 - 2,034
Short-term investments 14 452,884 - 452,884 889,082 - 889,082
Cash and bank balances 15 116,098 3,698 119,796 117,373 - 117,373
Statement of profit or loss
Revenue from contracts

with customers - net 23 - 26,747,828 26,747,828 - 21,368,949 21,368,949
Foreign exchange loss (net) 25 - - 1,103,990 - 1,103,990
Profit on saving bank

accounts / bank placements 26 4,080 - 4,080 80,876 - 80,876
Income from investments 26 114,633 - 114,633 27,390 - 27,390
Foreign exchange gain (net) 25 57,436 - 57,436 - - -
Scrap sales 26 - 25,729 25,729 - 41,471 41,471
Gain on disposal of

fixed assets - net 26 - 1,333 1,333 - 6,118 6,118
Insurance claim 26 15,194 - 15,194 62,100 - 62,100
Finance costs 27 144,517 - 144,517 174,773 - 174,773
Other income - 73,391 73,391 - 168,621 168,621

EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

(Rupees in thousand)

1,857,147 360,807

(Number of Shares)

9,644,760 9,644,760

(Rupees)
192.56 37.41

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.
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33 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 34 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,

DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVES
33.1 The related parties of the Company comprise of group companies, associated undertakings,

employees’ retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. All transactions with Chief Executive Officer F'?Ii]’::;?arl/oﬁ:‘i::'r Other Executive

related parties are executed into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 |
Company. Transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed elsewhere in these financial (Rupees in thousand)
statements, are as follows: Managerial remuneration 43 567 33,400 - 3,796 534,993 559,842 578,560 597,038
Bonus 16,113 9,343 = 1,596 354,991 195,989 371,104 206,928
] Retirement benefits - 3,798 - 727 73,079 84,293 73,079 88,818
o FormerParert Managerl Rent, utilities and others = 7,493 = 2,088 212,581 264,308 212,581 273,889
, | Manageria ormer Paren , | Manageria i B -
Associated | Employees : : Employees : Medical expenses 1,191 43 23,237 27,816 23,237 29,050
Parent SSociate retirement remuneration Parent and Group | Associated retirement remuneration 59,680 55,225 - 8250 198,881 1132.048 125856 1195723

Company undertakings

and other Company | Companies | undertakings . and other
benefits benefits

funds

Number of persons, including those

(Rlpessinitholisand) who worked part of the year 1 2 - 1 171 291 172 294
Sales - 10714 . . 10714 . . 6,089 . . 6,089
Purchase of goods - 5649 . - 563407 - 3086631 88,110 . - 317474 . ) , ! ) ) ) )
Shared services received 148,184 55420 . - 203604 19686 . . . - 19686 34.1  Inaddition, Chief Executive Officer and certain Executives are also provided with the use of Company
Shared services rendered 507 - - ° 507 - - - - - - maintained cars.
Insurance claim received e 15,194 ° ° 15,194 - - 62,100 - - 62,100
Insurance premium - 167,648 - - 167,648 - - 83,149 - - 83,149
gubsc.riptionfzepaid s ” i i ” : : 5 : : 5 34.2 Key management personnel are persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
oons ) e ) N - D s and controlling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly and include Chief Executive Officer,
Dividend paid 217851 178,852 . 396,403 - - . . . - Chief Financial Officer and certain executives of the Company.
Key management personnel ° ° 367,262 367,262 - - - 235,779 235,779
Contribution paid: . . . .
- Provident fund - - 76,677 . 76677 . . - 68688 - 68688 34.3  As perthe requirements of the Act, executive represents an employee, other than the Chief Executive
- Gty furd : : Uik -k : : - B - B Officer and Executive Directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1,200,000 in a financial year.

33.2 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or had

arrangements / agreements in place: 34.4 Directors fee to non-executive directors and independent directors amounts to Rs. 14.85 million

(2023: Rs. 14.73 million).

16 FINANGIAL ASSETS AND FINANGIAL LIABILITIES

Packages Limited Pakistan Parent Company 41.07%
IGI Investments (Private) Limited Pakistan Common Directorship/Shareholding 24.97% . :
AGT Holding (Private) Limited Pakistan Common Directorship/Shareholding 2.07% 351 Financial assets Maturity Maturity
Ali Gohar & Company (Private) Limited Pakistan Common Directorship/Shareholding 0.53%
Packages Converters Limited Pakistan Common Directorship - .
IGI General Insurance Limited Pakistan Common Directorship - Note Interest Rate (Rupees in thousand)
IGI Life Insurance Limited Pakistan Common Directorship - As at December 31, 2024
Bulleh Shah Packaging (Private) Limited Pakistan Common Directorship - i . i
Nera Pharma (SMC-Private) Limited Pakistan Common Directorship 5.42% Financial assets at amortised cost
Pakistan Petroleum Limited Pakistan Common Directorship -
Packages Foundation Pakistan Common Directorship - Interest-bearing:
Mr. Sajjad Iftikhar - Chief Executive Officer - Loans to employees 6 9% 31 43 74
Mr. Yasser Pirmuhammad - Chief Financial Officer - Cash and bank balances 15 13.50% - 20.50% 18,690 - 18,690
Syed Babar Ali - Director / Chairman 0.00% Total interest-bearing financial assets 18,721 43 18,764
Syed Hyder Ali - Director 3.32%
Mr. Arshad Ali Gohar - Director 13.89% Non interest-bearing:
Mr. Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala - Director 0.00% Loans to employees 6 3,307 5,613 8,920
Syed Anis Ahmad Shah - Director 0.00% Long-term deposits = 47,596 47,596
Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney - Director 0.00% Trade debts 10 805,073 = 805,073
Ms. Saadia Naveed - Director 0.00% Advances to executives 11 5,821 - 5,821
Ms. lgra Sajjad . Director . Trade deposits 12 493,267 - 493,267
Mr. Muhammad Khalid - Key management personnel - Other receivables 13 54,484 _ 54,484
Mr. Abdul Rahman - Key management personnel - Cash and bank balances 15 101,106 - 101,106
Mr. Javaid Igbal - Key management personnel - 1,463,058 53.209 1,516,267
Ms. Laila Mughal - Key management personnel -
Ms. Maha Khan - Key management personnel . . .
Ms. Bushra Khalig - Key management personnel Flna_n cial assets at fair value through
Mr. Nadim Ur Rehman - Key management personnel profit or loss
Mr. Salman Shamim - Key management personnel )
Mr. Munzir Ishaq Rajput - Key management personnel Non Intere§t-bearlng:
Mr. Tariq Naveed Khan - Key management personnel Short-term investments 14 452,884 - 452,884
Syed Muhammad Ali Hasani - Key management personnel -
Syed Muhammad Taha Naqvi - Key management personne| - TOta| non Intel’est-bearlng fInanCIa| aSSGtS 1 ,91 5,942 53,209 1 ,969,1 51
The Sanofi-Aventis Pakistan

Employees’ Gratuity Fund - Retirement benefit fund -
The Sanofi-Aventis Pakistan

Employees’ Provident Fund - Retirement benefit fund -
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35.2

35.3

Maturity Maturity Total
up to one year | after one year

Note Interest Rate (Rupees in thousand)

As at December 31, 2023
Financial assets at amortised cost
Interest-bearing:
Loans to employees 6 9% 2 - 2
Cash and bank balances 15 14.50% - 20.75% 23,641 - 23,641
Total interest-bearing financial assets 23,643 - 23,643
Non interest-bearing:
Loans to employees 6 2,298 4,146 6,444
Long-term deposits - 15,983 15,983
Trade debts 10 572,014 - 572,014
Advances to executives 11 6,182 - 6,182
Trade deposits 12 413,507 - 413,507
Other receivables 13 35,240 - 35,240
Cash and bank balances 15 93,732 - 93,732

1,122,973 20,129 1,143,102
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss Non Interest-bearing:
Short-term investments 14 889,082 - 889,082
Total non interest-bearing financial assets 2,012,055 20,129 2,032,184

Financial liabilities

Maturity Maturity
Total
up to one year | after one year

Note Interest Rate (Rupees in thousand)

As at December 31, 2024
Interest-bearing financial

liabilities at amortised cost
Short-term borrowings 21 KIBOR - 1.40% 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Lease liability 19 19.69% 2,001 209,475 211,476
Total Interest-bearing financial liabilities 1,202,001 209,475 1,411,476
Non interest-bearing financial liabilities

at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 20 3,789,058 - 3,789,058
Accrued mark-up 13,922 - 13,922
Total non interest-bearing financial liabilities 3,802,980 - 3,802,980
As at December 31, 2023
Non interest-bearing financial

liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 20 3,378,421 - 3,378,421
Accrued mark-up 2,034 - 2,034
Trade and other payables
Total non interest-bearing financial liabilities 3,380,455 - 3,380,455

Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables and short-term
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations.
The Company’s principal financial assets include trade debts, trade deposits and other receivables
that derive directly from its operations.
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35.3.1

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Company’s financial performance. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses
on minimising potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. The overall risk
management of the Company is carried out by the Company’s senior management team under
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarized below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range, and the
management manages these risks as explained in the following paragraphs.

35.3.1.1 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign
currency risk due to transactions denominated in foreign currencies primarily relating to its operating
activities. When the management expects future depreciation of reporting currency, the Company
manages its foreign currency risk in accordance with the Company’s treasury policy.

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk in major currencies is as follows:

Euro in ‘000 USD in ‘000 CHF in 000
Other receivables - 36 = - - -
Bank balances - - > 49 - -
Trade and other payables (1,911) (3,774) (94) (792) (32 (109)

(911 @3738) _ (94) (743)  (32)  (109)

Significant exchange rates applied during the year were as follows:

Average rate | Spotrate |

(Rupees)
EUR 301.41 303.65 290.08 309.00
uUsD 278.53 280.28 278.55 281.50
CHF 316.71 312.27 308.44 308.00

Sensitivity analysis

The following is the demonstration of the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange
rate of all major currencies applied to assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2024 represented in
foreign currencies, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax.

10% 10%
59,059 139,777

Change in exchange rate
Effect on profit before income tax (Rupees in ‘000)

H H
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35.3.1.2 Interest rate risk Exposure to credit risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of change
in market interest rate relates primarily to the Company’s liability against borrowings with floating M
interest rates. The Company manages its net working capital by keeping it at an optimum level to Note

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

ensure minimal utilisation of running finance facilities.

Interest rate profile of financial instruments

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing floating financial

instruments were as follows:

Financial assets
Loans to employees
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings

Sensitivity analysis

(Rupees in thousand)

74 2

18,690 23,641
18,764 23,643
1,200,000 -

A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rate at the reporting date would have changed
Company’s profit before tax by the amounts shown below, with all other variables held constant.

Change in interest rate
Effect on profit before tax (Rupees in ‘000)

H H

35.3.1.3 Price risk

1% 1%
11,812 236

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

34.3.2.1

. . . R in th d
Financial assets at amortised cost (Rupees in thousand)

Loans to employees 6 8,994 6,446
Long-term deposits 47,596 15,983
Trade debts 10 805,073 572,014
Trade deposits 12 493,267 413,507
Advances to executives 11 5,821 6,182
Others receivables 13 54,484 35,240
Bank balances 15 119,612 117,326

1,534,847 1,166,698

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Short term investments 14 452,884 889,082

Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or default
history of counter parties as disclosed in notes 35.3.2.1 to 35.3.2.3 to these financial statements.

Trade debts

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company’s established policies, procedures and
controls relating to customer credit risk management.

The aging of trade debts and analysis of expected credit loss rate is as follows:

(Rupees in thousand)

35.3.2

because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or
its issuer, or factors effecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is
mainly exposed to price risk on its mutual fund investments.

As at December 31, 2024, if net asset value had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have been higher/ lower by Rs. 4.53 million (2023: Rs. 8.89 million).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss without taking into account the fair value of
any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged
in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economical, political or
other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, trade
deposits, other receivables, short term investments and balances with banks. The carrying amount
of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. To reduce the exposure to credit risk
on trade debts, the Company has developed a formal approval process, whereby credit limits are
applied to its customers. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the
customers and records an allowance for expected credit loss. The credit risk on liquid funds such
as balances with banks and short term investments is limited because the counter parties are banks
and asset management companies with reasonably high credit ratings.
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December 31, 2024

Expected credit loss rate 5.64% 25.97% 34.38%
Expected credit loss 37,680 23,938 26,216
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default 667,513 92,165 76,243
December 31, 2023
Expected credit loss rate 9.13% 15.62% 31.88%
Expected credit loss 43,895 13,041 10,251
Estimated total gross

carrying amount at default 480,578 83,515 32,154

35.3.2.2 Cash at banks
The carrying values of bank balances are analysed as follows:
Credit ratings:

Al+
A-2

52.056% 88.55% 31.48%
25,918 256,176 369,928
49,790 289,290 1,175,001

45.90% 89.99% 30.77%
20,751 166,275 254,213
45,206 184,774 826,227

(Rupees in thousand)

102,479 79,426
17,133 37,900
119,612 117,326
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As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the credit quality of the Company’s bank balances can be
assessed with reference to external credit ratings assigned to the respective banks as follows:

Ratina b 2024 | = 2023 |
agoncy | Short-term| Long-term | Short ferm| Long-term
9 y (Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

Allied Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA A-1+ AAA
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA Al+ AAA A-1+ AAA
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ AAA A-1+ AA+
Deutsche Bank AG Moody’s P-1 Al - A-2
S&P A-1 A A-2 A-
Fitch F2 A- F-2 BBB+
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA Al+ AAA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+ Al+ AA+
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA A-1+ AA
VIS A-1+ AA A-1+ AA
JS Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA A-1+ AA-
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA A-1+ AAA
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA A-1+ AAA
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA A-1+ AAA
VIS A-1+ AAA A-1+ AAA
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited =~ PACRA Al+ AAA A-1+ AAA
United Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA A-1+ AAA

35.3.2.3 Short-term investments

35.4

The carrying values of short-term investment are analysed as follows:

. . (Rupees in thousand)
Credit ratings:

AMA1 452,884 1,402
AM2+ - 887,680

452,884 889,082
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market positions. The Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under control committed credit lines.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities, carried at

amortised cost, as at reporting date.
Undiscounted maturities

Carrying L
ess than More than
amount 12 months | 12 months

(Rupees in thousand)

December 31, 2024

Lease liability 211,476 2,001 651,489 653,490
Trade and other payables 3,789,058 3,789,058 - 3,789,058
Short-term borrowings 1,200,000 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Accrued mark-up 13,922 13,922 - 13,922
5,214,456 5,004,981 651,489 5,656,470
December 31, 2023
Trade and other payables 3,378,421 3,378,421 - 3,378,421
Accrued mark-up 2,034 2,034 - 2,034
3,380,455 3,380,455 - 3,380,455
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Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The different levels of fair valuation method have been defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements
approximate their fair values. The fair values of Company’s investment in mutual funds amounting to
Rs. 453 million (2023: 889 million) is determined under Level 2 valuation method.

As of reporting date, the Company’s investments properties are carried at cost. The fair values of
these properties as disclosed in note 5.3 have been determined under level 3 valuation method with
reference to market-based evidence after making adjustments for size, location, time, amenities
and other relevant factors by comparing the subject asset with identical or similar assets for which
price information is available. Valuation techniques used to derive the fair values of the investment
properties have been summarised in the table below:

Fair value Fair value Key Rate Rate
. December 31, | December 31 Valuation December 31, | December 31

Class of investment property > ’ ; unobservahle ¢ ’

2024 : 2023 technique inputs 2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees)
Leasehold land 750,000 750,000 151,210 151,210
Market
comparable Price per
approach square meter
Buildings on leasehold land 55,500 52,325 20,893 19,698
805,500 802,325

Increase / (decrease) in the price per square meter in isolation would result in a higher / (lower) fair
value. Sensitivity analysis of change in key input is as follows:

Effect on fair values

Sensitivity Leasehold |Buildings on
used land leasehold
)

(Rupees in thousand

2024 Increase of 10% 75,000 5,550

2023 Increase of 10% 75,000 5,233
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36

37

37.1

37.2

38

39

39.1

39.2

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may regulate the amount of
dividends declared and paid to the shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total bank borrowings less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as equity, as reported in the statement of financial position plus

net debt.
YO 2024 \ 2023 |

(Rupees in thousand)

The gearing ratio as at reporting date was as follows:

Short term-borrowings 21 1,200,000 -
Lease liability 19 211,476 -
Less: Cash and bank balances 15 (119,796) (117,373)
Net debt 1,291,680 (117,373)
Total capital 16 & 17 6,814,943 5,471,438

8,106,623 5,354,065

Gearing ratio [Net debt / (Net debt + Total capital)] 16% -

ENTITY WIDE INFORMATION

The Company constitutes a single reportable segment since the Directors and Executive Management
monitors the operating results of the entire Company for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Information about geographical areas of the
Company are as follows:

Sales to external customers, net of returns,
discounts and sales tax

(Rupees in thousand)

Pakistan 25,576,562 20,658,321
Afghanistan 1,171,266 710,628
26,747,828 21,368,949

There were three major customers of the Company who contributed 10%, 10% and 7% (2023:
12%,12% and 11%) respectively, of the Company’s net sales. All the sales of the Company relate to
pharmaceutical and related products and are earned from single shariah compliant reportable segment.
All non-current assets of the Company as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are located in Pakistan.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

The capacity and production of the Company’s manufacturing facility is not determinable as it is a
multiproduct plant facility involving varying processes of manufacture.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on February 20, 2025 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

Events after reporting date
The Board of Directors has proposed a final cash dividend for the year ended December 31, 2024 of

Rs. 110.00 per share amounting to Rs. 1,060.924 million in its meeting held on Feburary 20, 2025 for
the approval of the members at the annual general meeting to be held on April 08, 2025.
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40

40.1

40.2

40.3

GENERAL

Total number of employees as at December 31, 2024 was 837 (2023: 734) and average number of
employees during the year was 771 (2023: 741).

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for
better presentation. The material reclassification made during the year is as follows:

D iti Reclassified Rupees
SSeERen . Fom | To | in‘000

Allowance for expected credit loss Other expenses Statement of profit or
loss - allowance for 47,005

expected credit loss

Figures presented in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand
Pakistan Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

fota i R Yo

Syed Babar Ali
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Sajjad Iftikhar Yasser Pirmuhammad

Chief Financial Officer
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Shareholders’ Information

Registered Office Share Registrar
Plot 23, Sector 22, Korangi Industrial Area, FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited
Karachi-74900, Pakistan 8-F, Near Hotel Faran Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S.
PABX: (021) 35060221-35 Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi - 75400
Fax: (021) 35060358 Tel: (021) 34380101-5, (021) 34384621-3

Fax: (021) 34380106

Ownership
On December 31, 2024, there were 881 members on the Company’s ordinary share register.

Dividend Payment

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended a 1,100% (Rs. 110 per share) final cash dividend for the
year ended 2024. The proposal shall be placed before the shareholders of the company in the Annual General Meeting
for their consideration and approval on Tuesday, April 08, 2025. The dividend, if approved by the shareholders, shall be
directly credited to the designated bank accounts of the shareholders listed in the Company’s share register at the close
of business on Tuesday, April 01, 2025, and shall be subject to the Zakat and tax deductions as per applicable laws.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

RESULTS

First quarter ended March 31, 2024
Half year ended June 30, 2024

Third quarter ended September 30, 2024

Year ended December 31, 2024

Approved and announced on

Approved and
announced on

Approved on
announced on

Approved and announced on

April 24, 2024

August 22, 2024
August 23, 2024

October 23, 2024
October 24, 2024

February 20, 2025

DIVIDEND
Final — Cash (2023) Approved on April 08, 2024
Statutory time limit up to which payable April 24, 2024
Paid on April 19, 2024
Interim — Cash (2024) Approved on August 22, 2024
Statutory time limit up to which payable September 18, 2024
Paid on September 18, 2024
57th Annual General Meeting To Be Held on April 08, 2025

Listing on Stock Exchange
The equity shares of Hoechst Pakistan Limited (the “Company”) are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX).

Stock Code
The trading symbol for dealing in equity shares of Hoechst Pakistan Limited at the PSX is ‘HPL'.

Share Registrar

The shares department of the Company is operated by FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited and serves its
shareholders. It is managed by a well-experienced team of professionals and is equipped with the necessary infrastructure
in terms of computer facilities and a comprehensive set of systems and procedures for conducting the registration function.

The Share Registrar has online connectivity with the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC). It undertakes
activities pertaining to dematerialization of shares, share transfers, transmissions, issue of duplicate/ replaced share
certificates, change of address and other related matters.

For assistance, shareholders may contact either the Registered Office or the Share Registrar at details appearing below:

Contact persons

Syed Muhammad Taha Naqvi Mr. Salman Rauf

PABX: (021) 35060221-35 Tel: (021) 34380101-5, (021) 34384621-3
Fax: (021) 35060358 Fax: (021) 34380106

Email: company.secretary @hoechst.com.pk Email: info.shares@famcosrs.com

Service Standards

Hoechst Pakistan Limited (formerly Sanofi-Aventis Pakistan Limited) has always endeavored to provide its investors and
shareholders with prompt services. Listed below are various services and the maximum time limits set for their execution,
subject to receipt of the complete set of required documents:
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_ For requests received through post or over the counter

Transfer of shares 15 days after receipt
Transmission of shares 15 days after receipt
Issue of duplicate share certificates 30 days after receipt
Updating of IBAN 2 working days after receipt
Change of address 2 days after receipt

Well qualified personnel of Share Registrar have been entrusted with the responsibility of ensuring that services are
rendered within the set time limits.

Statutory Compliance
During the year, the Company has complied with all applicable provisions, filed all returns/forms and furnished all the
relevant and prescribed information.

Dematerialization of Shares
The equity shares of the Company are under the dematerialization category. As of date, 97.33% of the equity shares of
the Company have been dematerialized by the shareholders.

Members holding shares in physical form are encouraged to convert their physical shares into Book-Entry Form (CDC)
pursuant to the requirements of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”).

Investors’ Grievances
To date none of the investors or shareholders has filed any letter of complaint against any service provided by the
Company to its shareholders.

Legal Proceedings
No case has ever been filed by shareholders against the Company.

Share Price/Volume
The monthly high and low prices and the volume of shares traded on the Pakistan Stock Exchange during the financial
year 2024 are as under:

Share Price on the PSX (RS.) Volume of Shares PSX 100-Index
Highest Lowest Traded Close

January 1,320.00 1,320.00 5,580 61,979.18
February 1,281.00 1,270.00 8,800 64,578.52
March 1,300.00 1,282.00 1,400 67,578.52
April 1,300.00 1,231.00 3,823 71,102.54
May 1,400.00 1,400.00 114,283 75,878.47
June 1,600.00 1,600.00 64,895 78,444.96
July 1,600.00 1,570.00 3,558 77,886.98
August 2,100.00 2,100.00 35,775 78,488.21
September 2,099.00 2,000.00 1,449 81,114.20
October 2,325.99 2,200.00 3,715 88,966.76
November 2,699.00 2,699.00 3,225 101,357.32
December 2,800.10 2,800.00 5,152 115,126.90
3,000.004 r 140,000
2,500.00 - 120,000
100,000
2,000.001
80,000
1,500.00
60,000
1,000.00
140,000
500.00 | 20,000
OA T T . T T 0

M Volume ——High Low —— Index
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Pattern of Shareholding

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

Shareholding

From

1

101

501

1,001
5,001
10,001
15,001
20,001
50,001
60,001
140,001
200,001
255,001
300,001
520,001
1,335,001
2,405,001
3,955,001

1

To
100

500
1,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
55,000
65,000
145,000
205,000
260,000
305,000
525,000

,340,000
2,
31

410,000
960,000

B e T S S e S N S U “° I\ I \& I N

Number of shareholders Total shares held

15,674
76,057
42,745
105,746
34,085
21,400
35,028
65,428
51,442
63,777
143,464
200,311
255,700
302,871
523,000
1,340,000
2,408,171
3,959,861

881

9,644,760

Shareholding Position / IBAN
as on December 31, 2024

323

Total Number of shares
as on December 31, 2024

CDC
558

881

Physical
257,322 9,387,438 9,644,760

Number of IBAN updated
as on December 31, 2024

626

Non-IBAN
255 881

Physical

Physical

© IBAN
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Non-IBAN

Categories of Shareholding

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

Number of No. of

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their
spouse and minor children

2  Associated Companies, Undertakings
and related Parties

3 NITandICP

4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions,
Non Banking Financial Institutions

5 Insurance Companies
6  Modarabas and Mutual Funds
7  Share holders holding 10%
8  General Public :
a. local
b. Foreign
9  Others

Total (excluding : share holders holding 10%)

9 1,682,655 17.45

7 7,207,620 74.73

3 1,465 0.02

7 20,774 0.22

4 7,709,090 79.93
827 272,440 2.82
- - 0.00

28 459,806 4.77
881 9,644,760 100.00

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 103



Category Details of Shareholding

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

Shareholders’ Number of Number of
areholders’ category shareholders shares held

i) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children

Syed Babar Ali 1 100
Mrs. Perwin Babar Ali 1 22,690
Syed Hyder Ali 2 319,785
Mr. Arshad Ali Gohar 1 1,340,000
Syed Anis Ahmad Shah 1 20
Imtiaz Ahmed Husain Laliwala 1 20
Muhammad Salman Burney 1 20
Saadia Naveed 1 20
Total: 9 1,682,655
ii) Associated Companies, Undertakings and related Parties
Packages Limited 2 3,960,919
IGI Investments (Private) Limited 1 2,408,171
Nera Pharma (SMC-Private) Limited 1 523,000
AGT Holdings (Private) Limited 1 200,311
Ali Gohar & Co. (Private) Limited 1 51,442
Babar Ali Foundation 1 63,777
Total: 7 7,207,620
iii) Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions
National Bank Of Pakistan 1 129
MCB Bank Limited - Treasury 1 40
Pak-Oman Investment Company Limited 1 1,296
Total: 3 1,465
iv) Modarabas and Mutual Funds
CDC - Trustee Al Habib Islamic Stock Fund 1 10,000
CDC - Trustee Faysal Islamic Stock Fund 1 1,096
CDC - Trustee Nafa Pension Fund Equity Sub-Fund Account 1 3,499
CDC - Trustee Nafa Islamic Pension Fund Equity Account 1 3,079
CDC - Trustee Faysal Islamic Pension Fund-Equity Sub Fund 1 100
CDC - Trustee Al Habib Pension Fund-Equity Sub Fund 1 1,400
CDC - Trustee Al Habib Islamic Pension Fund-Equity Sub Fund 1 1,600
Total: 7 20,774
v) Share holders holding 10% or more
Packages Limited 2 3,960,919
IGI Investments (Private) Limited 1 2,408,171
Mr. Arshad Ali Gohar 1 1,340,000
Total: 4 7,709,090
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Notice of 57" Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 57" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Hoechst Pakistan Limited (formerly Sanofi-Aventis
Pakistan Limited) will be held on Tuesday, April 8th, 2025 at 09:30 A.M. at the Auditorium of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi and virtually through video conference facility
to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1)  To confirm the minutes of the 56th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on April 08, 2024.

2) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024
together with the Chairman’s Review, Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

As required under section 223(6) of the Companies Act 2017 (the “Act”) and approved by the shareholders of the Company
in AGM held on April 08, 2024, the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company have been uploaded on the
website of the Company which can be downloaded from the following link and/or QR enabled code:

5L

3) To consider and approve the Final Cash Dividend at the rate of Rs. 110.00 (1,100%) per ordinary share of Rs. 10/- as
recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended December 31, 2024. This is in addition to interim cash
dividend of Rs. 25.00 (250%) per share already paid during the year.

4) To appoint External Auditors of the Company for the year 2025 and to fix their remuneration. The current Auditors,
M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co. (Chartered Accountants), being eligible to do so, have consented to be appointed as
Auditors and the Board of Directors has recommended their appointment.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
5) To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

A
Ko~
-
Karachi Syed Muhammad Taha Naqvi
March 18, 2025 Company Secretary

Participation in the AGM Proceedings Via Video Conferencing Facility

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”) has vide its circulars issued from time to time directed
the listed companies to hold general meetings virtually in addition to the requirements of holding physical meeting. The
following arrangements have been made by the Company to facilitate the participation of the shareholders in the AGM:

The shareholders interested in attending the AGM virtually are requested to get themselves registered by sending their
particulars at the designated email address shares.desk@hoechst.com.pk mentioning their name, folio number, email
address by the close of business hours on April 04, 2025. The log-in credentials and link to participate in the AGM would
be provided to the registered shareholders via response email. The shareholders are also encouraged to send their
comments/suggestions, related to the agenda items of the AGM on the abovementioned email address by the same date.

Notes:

Closure of Share Transfer Books and Appointment of Proxies

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, April 02, 2025 to Tuesday, April 08,
2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s FAMCO Share
Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi
at the close of business on Tuesday, April 01, 2025 or updated on Central Depository System as per CDC regulations,
will be treated in time for the purpose of entitlement to the transferees.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint another person as his/her Proxy to attend, speak
and vote at the Meeting on his/her behalf. Instrument appointing Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

3. Shareholders holding physical shares are also required to bring their original CNIC and/or copy of CNIC of
shareholder(s) of whom he/she/they hold Proxy(ies). Such shareholder(s) shall not be allowed to attend and/or sign
the Register of Shareholders/Members at the AGM without such CNIC(s).
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4. The CDC Account Holders and Sub-Account Holders, whose registration details are available in the Share Book
Details Report, shall be required to produce their respective original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or
original passport at the time of attending the Annual General Meeting to facilitate identification. Such Account Holders
and Sub-Account Holders should also bring/know their respective participation I.D. No. and the CDC Account No. and
in case of Proxy, he/she must enclose an attested copy of his/her CNIC or Passport. Representative(s) of corporate
member(s) should bring attested copy of Board Resolution/Power of Attorney and/ or all such documents that are
required for such purpose under Circular No.1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”). Proxy form is also available on the Company’s website www.hoechst.com.pk

Withholding Tax on Dividend Income

Please further note that under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and pursuant to Finance Act 2020,
withholding tax on dividend income will be deducted as per law for persons appearing and not appearing in Active
Tax Payer List (ATL). According to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) withholding tax will be
determined separately on ‘Active/Inactive’ status of Principal Shareholder as well as Joint Holder(s) based on their
shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares with joint shareholders are requested to provide shareholding proportions
of Principal Shareholder and Joint Holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Company Folio/CDS Total Shareholding Name and Shareholding
Name Account No. Shares Name and Proportion CNIC No. Proportion
CNIC No. (No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

a. The required information must reach our Share Registrar by April 01, 2025; otherwise, it will be assumed that the
shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and Joint Holder(s) and tax will be deducted accordingly.

b. Shareholders are therefore requested to please check and ensure the status from Active Taxpayers List (ATL) available
at FBR website http://www.fbr.gov.pk/ as well as ensure that their CNIC/Passport number has been recorded by the
Participant/Investor Account Services or by Share Registrar (in case of physical shareholding). Corporate bodies
(non-Individual shareholders) should ensure that their names and National Tax Numbers (NTN) are available in ATL
at FBR website and recorded by respective Participant/Investor Account Services or in case of physical shareholding
by the Company’s Share Registrar.

c. Withholding tax exemption from dividend income shall only be allowed if a copy of valid tax exemption certificate is
made available to the Company’s Share Registrar by April 01, 2025.

d. Non-resident shareholder(s) shall submit declaration of undertaking with copy of valid passport under definition
contained in Section 82 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for determination of residential status for the purposes of
tax deduction on dividend to the Company Share Registrar’s FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited. or
email at info.shares@famcosrs.com at the latest by April 01, 2025. Member may send a declaration using a standard
format as placed on Registrar and Company’s websites as mentioned below:
www.famcosrs.com
www.hoechst.com.pk

Statutory Code of Conduct at AGM

The Members are requested to observe the Statutory Code of Conduct at AGM in accordance with Section 215 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 55 of the Companies Regulations, 2024, whereby shareholders are not permitted
to exert influence or approach the Management directly for decisions which may lead to creation of hurdles in the smooth
functioning of the Management. As mentioned in these provisions, shareholders shall not bring material that may cause
threat to participants or premises where the AGM is being held, confine themselves to the agenda items covered in
the notice of the AGM and shall not conduct themselves in a manner to disclose any political affiliation. Additionally,
the Company is not permitted to distribute gifts in any form to its shareholders in its meetings as per Section 185 of
Companies Act, 2017.

Payment of Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode (Mandatory)

In accordance with the Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulation 2017, shareholders are advised to provide their
identification Number/Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) Number and International Bank Account Number
(IBAN) details, if they have not already done so, to our Share Registrar (if shares are held in physical form) at their above
referred office address or to the respective Participants/Broker (if shares are held through CDS Account). In case of non-
receipt of information, the Company will be constrained to withhold payments of dividend.
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For the convenience of shareholders e-Dividend Mandate form is attached on Registrar and Company’s websites as
mentioned below:

www.famcosrs.com

www.hoechst.com.pk

Submission of Copy of CNIC and/or NTN (Mandatory)
Further to SECP’s directives, including SRO 831(1)/2012 and other relevant rules, for processing of electronic dividend
the shareholder should provide CNIC number, except in the case of minor(s) and corporate shareholders.

As per Regulation No. 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017 and Section 243(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017, the Company will be constrained to withhold payment of dividend to shareholders, in case of
non-availability of identification number of the shareholder or authorized person (CNIC or NTN) and as the case may be.

Accordingly, the individual Members who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC to the Company’s Share
Registrar are once again requested to send their CNIC copy at the earliest directly to the Company’s Share Registrar
at FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi. Corporate entities are requested to provide their National Tax Number (NTN) and Folio Number along
with the authorized representative’s CNIC copy.

Zakat Deduction

To claim exemption from compulsory deduction of Zakat, shareholders are requested to submit a notarized copy of Zakat
Declaration Form “CZ-50" on NJSP of Rs. 50/- to the Share Registrar. In case shares are held in scripless form such Zakat
Declaration Form (CZ -50) must be uploaded in the CDC account of the shareholder, through their participant/ Investor
Account Services. Further, Non-Muslim shareholders are also required to be Solemn Affirmation (on format available on
Company’s website) with the Share Registrar of the Company in case shares are held in physical certificates or with CDC
Participant/Investor Account Services in case shares are in scripless form. No exemption from deduction of Zakat will be
allowed unless the above documents complete in all respects have been made available as above.

Change of Address and/or Email Address

Shareholders having physical shares are requested to promptly notify change in their postal address(s) and/or email
address if any, to Share Registrar, in writing whereas CDC account holders are requested to update their addresses with
their CDC Participant/CDC Investor Account Services.

Unclaimed Dividend/Shares

Under Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017 the Company is required to approach shareholders to claim their
unclaimed dividends/shares. In this regard the Company has been reaching out to its shareholders by publishing notices
in newspapers after sending individual letters. Those shareholders, who have not claimed their dividend amounts and/or
shares as yet, are hereby requested to ensure that their claims for unclaimed dividend amounts and/or shares certificate
are lodged promptly to the Company’s Share Registrar.

Conversion of Physical Shares into CDC Account

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to replace its physical
shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the SECP. Shareholders
having physical shareholding(s) are encouraged to open a CDC sub-account with any broker or Investor Account directly
with CDC to place their physical shares into scripless form. This is beneficial in many ways, including safe custody and
sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Availability of Annual Audited Financial Statements

In In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to SRO 389(1)/2023 dated March
21, 2023, the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024, along with the
Directors’, Auditors’, and Chairman Report thereon, Notice of Annual General Meeting, and other related materials
have been made available on the Company’s website and published for sharing using a QR Code.

The Company has obtained shareholders’ approval to do so in the Annual General Meeting held on April 08, 2024.
Furthermore, members are hereby informed that pursuant to Section 223(6) and 473 of the Companies Act 2017,
whereby circulation of Audited Financial Statements and Notice of the Meeting has been allowed in electronic format
through email, the same has been circulated through email in cases where email address has been provided by
the member to the Company and hence the consent of member to receive the copies through email is not required.

Members can request a hard copy of the same, which shall be provided free of cost, within one week, if a request
has been made by the member on the standard request form available on the website of the Company.
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The Company Secretary Form Of Proxy

Hoechst Pakistan Limited

(formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited)
Plot 23, Sector 22, Korangi

Industrial Area, Karachi-74900

57th Annual General Meeting

I/We

of being member(s) of

Hoechst Pakistan Limited and holder of

Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. and

Sub Account No. hereby appoint Mr./Ms. of

or failing him / her

of as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us on my/
our behalf at the Fifty-Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, the 08th day
of April 2025, at 9:30 a.m. at the Auditorium of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Chartered
Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed thisdayof __ 2025.
1. Witness

Signature:

Name: Signature Please affix

Address: Rupees five

revenue
stamp
CNIC or
Passport No.
(Signature should agree
. with the specimen signature

2. Witness registered with the Company)

Signature:

Name:

Address:

CNIC or

Passport No.
Note:

Proxies must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

CDC Shareholders and their Proxies are requested to attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized
National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form before submission to the Company.
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Electronic Credit Mandate Form

Dear Shareholder,

We wish to inform you that in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017,
it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.

In order to receive your dividends directly in your Bank account, please complete the particulars as mentioned
below and return this letter duly signed along with a copy of your Computerized/Smart National Identity Card
(CNIC/SNIC) to the Share Registrar of the Company M/s FAMCO Share Registrtion Services (Pvt.) Limited,
8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, PE.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

CDC shareholders are requested to submit their Dividend Mandate Form and CNIC/SNIC directly to their
broker (participant)/CDC

Yours faithfully
For Hoechst Pakistan Limited (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited)

Syed Muhammad Taha Naqvi
Company Secretary

SHAREHOLDER’S SECTION:

| hereby communicate to receive my future dividends directly in my Bank account as detailed below:

Name of shareholder :
Folio Number / CDC Account No.:

Contact number of shareholder:

Title of bank account of shareholder:
IBAN Number (see below Note No. 1):

Name of Bank:

Bank branch & full mailing address:
CNIC/SNIC No. (copy attached):

NTN (in case of corporate entity):

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct to the best of my knowledge and | shall keep
the Company/broker (participant)/CDC informed in case of any change in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder’s Signature CNIC No.
(Copy attached)

Date:

Note:

1. Please provide complete International Bank Account Number (IBAN), after checking with your concerned branch to
enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.

2. Please provide declaration for non-deduction of Zakat, if applicable

3. The payment of cash dividend will be processed on the basis of the account number alone. The Company is entitled
to rely on the account number as per your instructions. The Company shall not be responsible for any loss, damage,
liability or claim arising, directly or indirectly, from any error, delay, or failure in performance of any of its obligations
hereunder which is caused by incorrect payment instructions and /or due to any event beyond the control of the
Company.
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112 | HOECHST PAKISTAN LIMITED (formerly Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited)

Request Form for Transmission
of Annual Report and Notices

The Registrar

FAMCO Share Registrtion Services (Pvt.) Limited,
8-F, Near Hotel Faran Block-6, Nursery,
P.E.C.H.S. Shahrah-e-Faisa, Karachi-74000

Dear Sir,

| hereby request you to send me the Annual Report of Hoechst Pakistan Limited for the year ended December 31, 2024 and
all notices under the Companies Act, 2017 at my postal / email address give below:

(Postal/email address of the shareholder)

The above address willbe recorded in the members register maintained under Section 119 of the Companies
Act, 2017.1 will inform the Company and its Share Registrar about any change in my postal address immediately.

Regards,

(Signature)
Name of the Shareholders

Folio No:
(In case of physical shareholding)

CDC Account No.:
Note: Individual CDC Account holders should submit copy of their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) alongwith

this request form.
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